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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: This hearing of

          3  the General Welfare Committee is now called to

          4  order. I want to apologize to everyone here today,

          5  our colleagues and all of our guests, and our

          6  friends from the Administration, that unfortunately

          7  we had trouble because of the previous hearing going

          8  late and obviously we have a small hearing room

          9  today and there is so much interest in this topic

         10  that we don't have the space we really would like to

         11  have. The other hearing rooms in City Hall are all

         12  in use right now. So, I just want to apologize for

         13  the delay and sorry that it's cramped quarters.

         14                 I would like to start by welcoming my

         15  colleagues, Council Member Tom White of Queens. I

         16  note that he has a Housing and Buildings Committee

         17  Meeting he is supposed to be at already, so he will

         18  be going over there when he has to; Council Member

         19  Annabel Palma of the Bronx; and Council Member

         20  Jessica Lappin of Manhattan. Thank you all very much

         21  for being here.

         22                 And I want to thank the staff of the

         23  General Welfare Committee who has done a lot of hard

         24  work in the past days preparing this hearing, Molly

         25  Murphy, Migna Taveras and Aaron Feinstein, thank you
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          2  very much for your work.

          3                 Let me just spend a moment framing

          4  this hearing and talking a little bit about the

          5  history. Back in 2004 the Mayor announced a

          6  five-year plan to reduce street homelessness and the

          7  shelter census by two-thirds by 2009. And I've said

          8  repeatedly, that's not only a worthy goal, that is a

          9  goal that shows courage. It was important to set a

         10  goal. It was important that the whole City close

         11  ranks behind that goal. But also in 2004, the

         12  Administration announced that homeless families

         13  would no longer get priority for Section 8 because

         14  the Department of Homeless Services was worried, the

         15  families that were not truly needy, not truly in a

         16  housing crisis, would enter shelter in search of a

         17  Section 8 voucher.

         18                 Now, it's amazing how quickly

         19  everything is changing our City, because just in the

         20  last few years we've had such a over-heated housing

         21  market, rents have gone up so intensely, and we've

         22  had the loss of thousands of affordable apartments,

         23  because of buildings phasing out of the

         24  Mitchell-Lama Program, luxury de-control, other

         25  factors. And more and more working poor families
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          2  need assistance. In fact, homelessness for families

          3  in New York City has never been worse, and that is

          4  the sad fact we're facing today.

          5                 Currently over 9,500 families utilize

          6  the shelter system each night, which is an all-time

          7  high. From Fiscal Year '06 to Fiscal Year '07, the

          8  average number of families with children in shelter

          9  increased 14 percent. In Fiscal Year '05,

         10  approximately 8,400 families entered the DHS shelter

         11  system, but in Fiscal Year '07, two years later,

         12  that number rose to over 10,000 families.

         13                 Now, I have immense respect for the

         14  Administration having set the goal they set, and I

         15  think I have consistently said I have respect for

         16  the Commissioner and his team. But the fact is the

         17  Administration is failing at moving families from

         18  shelter to permanent housing, and the number moved

         19  to permanent housing has decreased each year from

         20  Fiscal Year'04. In fact, from Fiscal '06 to Fiscal

         21  '07, it declined by nine percent. So, the situation

         22  we're facing in our neighborhoods is getting harder

         23  and harder for poor people, but the Administration's

         24  success at placing homeless people into permanent

         25  housing has declined.
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          2                 Now, exactly two weeks ago, DHS

          3  announced a drastic and ill-conceived new policy

          4  that will deny shelter to homeless children and

          5  families, and which will force many into the street.

          6                 Families who applied to shelter but

          7  were initially found ineligible will no longer be

          8  given shelter on an emergency night-to-night basis.

          9  During that time, in the past there had been

         10  opportunity to gather evidence to prove their case,

         11  but since that shelter is being denied, those

         12  families do not have a place to stay necessarily

         13  while they continue to seek a longer-term solution.

         14                 Now, DHS will say, I'm sure, they

         15  have said and they will say today they are closing a

         16  loophole. Let me be the first to say that all of us

         17  in the City Council do not want to see anyone cheat

         18  the system or take advantage of something that they

         19  don't deserve, but we really also don't want to see

         20  innocent children and innocent families on the

         21  street. We don't want to take any chance that an

         22  innocent child might end up on the street.

         23                 Parents, many single parents, many

         24  with small children, wait in line each night to

         25  board buses to take them to an overnight placement,
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          2  while they prove they have no other place to go.

          3  Now, the Administration says the families in

          4  question do have another place to go. But as the New

          5  York Times Editorial Board pointed out last Sunday,

          6  and we join them in wondering how many families,

          7  quote: Are willing to endure a Hellish nightly

          8  ritual, of taking their possessions and, quote,

          9  waiting to be bussed to a temporary bed for a few

         10  short hours of rest.

         11                 The Administration's new approach

         12  fails to consider the realities that these families

         13  face, and many of the quote/unquote other resources,

         14  the other people and other options that families are

         15  supposed to have, in fact aren't usable. In many

         16  cases they are family members who are not welcoming

         17  or situations that are overcrowded or unsafe.

         18                 Now, I want to make very clear, we

         19  are not here today to say we would like to see more

         20  and more people going into shelter. Quite the

         21  opposite. We want to make sure that people are being

         22  housed properly, and we want to make sure anyone in

         23  immediate need gets the help they need, and we can't

         24  assume in this process that Department of Homeless

         25  Services is always right in its assessment of
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          2  whether a family is in need and whether it has any

          3  other options.

          4                 We can't assume they get it right the

          5  first time or even on the second or third time.

          6  According to DHS's own statistics for Fiscal Year

          7  '07, 67 percent of applicants were deemed eligible

          8  in their first application, 21 percent on their

          9  second application, seven percent on their third,

         10  three percent on their fourth, one percent on their

         11  fifth.

         12                 Now, DHS will say that their error

         13  rate is in fact less than ten percent, but that does

         14  not make sense in light of their own numbers.

         15                 We need answers from DHS, because

         16  we're not just talking about percentages and

         17  figures, we're talking about human beings. We're

         18  talking about families. So, we need to know exactly

         19  how many families, and in particular how many

         20  children have been affected, not only by the new

         21  policy, but by the historic problem of eligible

         22  families having mistakenly been deemed ineligible.

         23                 According to the New York Times,

         24  eight families were turned away in the first week of

         25  the policy's enforcement, several whom were forced
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          2  to sleep on the floor of churches. One who spent the

          3  night in a hospital emergency room. This is an

          4  actual photo of one of the families that was turned

          5  away, sleeping on the floor of a church.

          6                 Now, this is not the kind of policy

          7  we, in the Council, can endorse. Turning people away

          8  doesn't solve the homelessness crisis in New York

          9  City.

         10                 Instead, the Administration should

         11  redouble its efforts and focus on what has worked in

         12  the past to get homeless families into permanent

         13  housing, and that is federal Section 8 assistance,

         14  priority status for public housing, and most

         15  importantly, the creation of new affordable public

         16  housing.

         17                 With that, I'd like to welcome the

         18  Commissioner and his team, and -- I'm sorry, I would

         19  also like to welcome Council Member Jimmy Vacca of

         20  the Bronx, and, Commissioner, we will welcome your

         21  testimony now.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Good afternoon,

         23  Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee. My name

         24  is Rob Hess. I am the Commissioner of the Department

         25  of Homeless Services. And joining me today is Carol
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          2  David, our Assistant Commissioner for Intake

          3  Services.

          4                 As you know, DHS is responsible for

          5  helping men, women and children who may be at risk

          6  of experiencing homelessness, to avoid the trauma of

          7  shelter whenever possible, and to lessen the time

          8  spent in emergency shelter by quickly helping

          9  individuals and families transition from shelter to

         10  permanent housing.

         11                 DHS does more to assist those

         12  experiencing homelessness than any other City in the

         13  country. The work we are doing in New York truly

         14  serves as a model for the rest of the nation.

         15                 One of the greatest achievements of

         16  the Administration in my view was closing the doors

         17  of the EAU, our former family intake center. And

         18  instead, in November of 2004, we opened our

         19  temporary intake center PATH, which serves as our

         20  front door for families seeking shelter, pending the

         21  City's construction of a new intake facility on the

         22  site of the old EAU.

         23                 As we sit here today, the EAU is in

         24  the process of being torn down. For 20 years, the

         25  EAU represented a system that was difficult and
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          2  confusing for families applying for temporary

          3  emergency housing. The vision of families sleeping

          4  on the floors and waiting days to have applications

          5  processed should not be forgotten.

          6                 We need to remember the work that was

          7  done by this City to transform the system into one

          8  that treats clients with dignity and respect. The

          9  current prevention assistance for temporary housing

         10  for PATH facility stands as a symbol of all of the

         11  work we have done to reform the system. PATH's

         12  office design, program mix and staffing models were

         13  informed by the set of recommendations released by

         14  the court-appointed special master panel in June of

         15  2004. Consistent with those recommendations, PATH

         16  includes multiple opportunities for families to

         17  access prevention services and enhance social work

         18  component, a mid-point case conference where

         19  families are apprised of the likely outcome of their

         20  eligibility determination, and bridge services to

         21  transition ineligible families back to the available

         22  housing and community supports.

         23                 DHS client advocates are also located

         24  on-site to help families navigate the process. Today

         25  we face a challenge. The challenge is to protect the
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          2  incredible work the City has done to create an

          3  efficient and effective system to serve families who

          4  are homeless and in need of shelter. We have come

          5  too far to go back to the old days of the EAU.

          6                 In the past several months we have

          7  become aware of a discreet but growing number of

          8  families, who after receiving ten-day conditional

          9  placement and a comprehensive investigation of their

         10  application, were found ineligible because they have

         11  an available housing option. Nevertheless, they

         12  continue to come to PATH after 5:00 p.m., seeking a

         13  late arrival placement or a placement for the night.

         14  We soon realized that this disturbing trend, if

         15  allowed to continue, would threaten the very

         16  integrity and effectiveness of the PATH process that

         17  we have worked so hard to build.

         18                 To address this loophole, two weeks

         19  ago we implemented a new policy with respect to

         20  families whom we have determined ineligible for

         21  shelter because they have a housing option.

         22                 Before I go into detail about the new

         23  policy's impact, I would first like to provide a

         24  general overview of the PATH process. This will

         25  allow you to better understand the challenge and why
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          2  we decided to make this change.

          3                 Last night there were more than 8,000

          4  families with children that spent the night in

          5  shelter. For these families, shelter was their only

          6  available housing option. The decision to enter

          7  shelter is never an easy one. Many struggle with the

          8  notion of reaching out for help. Others are too

          9  proud or too determined to find another way.

         10                 If these families have no other

         11  housing options, it is our responsibility to provide

         12  them with shelter. In doing so, we must also ensure

         13  that the system is responsive to their needs and

         14  provides them with the services that they need in a

         15  humane environment. In keeping with one of the key

         16  recommendations of the Special Master Panel, DHS

         17  operates PATH on a business hours model to respond

         18  to families seeking temporary emergency shelter.

         19  Thus, while PATH is open to families 24 hours a day,

         20  seven days a week, 365 days a year, families who

         21  apply for shelter between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

         22  Monday through Sunday receive a full processing of

         23  their application.

         24                 Families who come to PATH after 5:00

         25  p.m., other than the families with housing options
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          2  who are now the subject of our new policy, are given

          3  a late arrival placement and then transported back

          4  to PATH the next morning to continue and complete

          5  their application.

          6                 The purpose of the business hour

          7  model is to prevent the significant disruption to

          8  families, particularly children, caused by spending

          9  evening hours at the intake center.

         10                 When any given day approximately 90

         11  families come to PATH and apply for shelter, DHS

         12  gives these families ten days of free shelter while

         13  the agency conducts a comprehensive investigation of

         14  their circumstances to see if they are eligible to

         15  remain in the shelter system.

         16                 Our eligibility process, or as I

         17  refer to it, the PATH process, is based upon a

         18  comprehensive team approach that ensures accuracy in

         19  our eligibility determinations, and fosters greater

         20  speed in rendering them.

         21                 Each family is guided through the

         22  process by a single-family worker whose assessment

         23  of the family's application is reviewed at critical

         24  junctures by the senior supervisor, the team leader

         25  and the lawyer on the team.
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          2                 The PATH process for families who are

          3  applying for shelter for the first time takes place

          4  in two phases, the application phase and the

          5  investigation and eligibility determination phase.

          6                 First the application process. For

          7  families who apply during business hours, it takes

          8  between six and eight hours to complete the

          9  application process and obtain a conditional

         10  placement that same day.

         11                 At the EAU, the same family would

         12  have spent 20 hours completing the application

         13  process spread over two and possibly three days. The

         14  application phase proceeds as follows: Before a

         15  family meets with their family worker, they are

         16  screened by a reception worker who asks the family

         17  to fill out a one-page application, answering, among

         18  other things where they were living prior to coming

         19  to PATH, and how the family became homeless.

         20                 The head of household is also asked

         21  to complete a one-page health screen indicating if

         22  the family member is pregnant, is feeling sick and

         23  needs to see a nurse or suffers from certain medical

         24  conditions.

         25                 If needed, they will be seen by the
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          2  screening nurse or the triage nurse practitioner at

          3  PATH's on-site medical provider, the floating

          4  hospital, who will in turn refer the family to an

          5  off-site medical provider, if that is warranted.

          6                 If the family indicates on their

          7  applications they seek shelter because of domestic

          8  violence or child abuse, the family is referred to a

          9  trained domestic violence counselor in the HRA No

         10  Violence Again Unit, or NOVA unit, or to child

         11  protective specialists in the Administration for

         12  Children Services, ACS Unit.

         13                 The first step in the application

         14  process is an interview by a team of homeless

         15  Diversion workers. The team is composed of a staff

         16  from HRA, HomeBase, and the Neighborhood Association

         17  for Inter-Cultural Affairs. They explore what the

         18  applicant alternatives to shelter. The team offers a

         19  variety of services, including legal services, cash

         20  assistance, benefits advocacy, and information on

         21  housing resources and ongoing community-based

         22  support.

         23                 The family then meets with their

         24  family worker who is trained to conduct an in-depth

         25  face-to-face interview which often lasts from one to
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          2  one and a half hours.

          3                 The family worker goes over a 14-page

          4  eligibility determination questionnaire to obtain

          5  the family's history. This covers, among other

          6  things, the family composition, the family's housing

          7  history for the past two years, reasons for seeking

          8  shelter, family members employment, benefits, rental

          9  assistance, and financial resources and family

         10  discord criminal justice history and prior ACS

         11  involvement, any domestic violence, child welfare,

         12  or medical issues that confront the family. And the

         13  family's current living situation, including the

         14  type of housing in which the family resides, the

         15  number of rooms, and the sleeping arrangements of

         16  those residing there and whether the home contains

         17  hazardous conditions.

         18                 At the completion of the interview,

         19  the family is assigned and transported to a family

         20  facility in which they will reside for the next ten

         21  days, pending the agency's investigation and

         22  determination of their application for temporary

         23  housing assistance.

         24                 Shelter is an option of last resort

         25  for those who have no other place to stay. To
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          2  ascertain whether families have alternative housing

          3  resources, DHS field investigators visit housing

          4  locations, including those in the family's two-year

          5  housing history to determine whether they are an

          6  appropriate place for the family to stay, even

          7  temporarily.

          8                 The investigators tour the home to

          9  assess such thing as the numbers of rooms, the

         10  make-up of those residing at the location and the

         11  sleeping arrangements. They also interview the

         12  primary tenant and others who may have relevant

         13  information, such as occupants of the home,

         14  neighbors and building superintendents.

         15                 Each field investigator prepares a

         16  report, containing among other information, a

         17  primary tenant's reasons for the family's departure

         18  from the home, the household sleeping arrangement,

         19  and the family's length of stay at the prior

         20  housing.

         21                 If necessary, the family worker or

         22  team leader conducts telephone interviews with

         23  primary tenants or in some cases they will contact

         24  the landlord, building superintendents and neighbors

         25  to better determine the availability of housing
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          2  resources other than shelter.

          3                 If the family's housing option is out

          4  of town, DHS investigates by contacting primary

          5  tenants via telephone.

          6                 From experience we know that a

          7  significant number of families coming from doubled

          8  up housing situations were living with other family

          9  members, mothers and fathers, grandparents, brothers

         10  and sisters, aunts and uncles, for example.

         11                 The 45-page eligibility guidelines

         12  that govern the investigation are well established.

         13  In 1999, DHS developed guidelines with considerable

         14  consultant with the then court-appointed Special

         15  Master who in turn reviewed them with the

         16  Plaintiff's Counsel. Following this process, DHS

         17  distributed the final version of the guidelines and

         18  shared them with Plaintiffs in response to the court

         19  order, and has not changed them, except in

         20  non-substantive ways since.

         21                 The guidelines were also shared with

         22  and reviewed by the Special Master Panel, as part of

         23  his comprehensive two-year review of our eligibility

         24  process. These guidelines, which consolidate and

         25  reconcile State laws, regulations and court orders
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          2  regarding eligibility standards are used by all past

          3  staff involved in rendering eligibility decisions.

          4                 The PATH process has many safeguards

          5  to ensure that an adequate investigation is done. A

          6  mid-point conference, case conference is held, while

          7  the family is in traditional placement to afford the

          8  family the opportunity to correct any inaccurate

          9  information and to provide any additional facts or

         10  documentation to ensure that a correct eligibility

         11  determination is made.

         12                 Another key purpose of the conference

         13  is to provide the family with a preliminary

         14  eligibility finding. This enables an MSW from the

         15  Resource Room to start exploring with families

         16  alternatives to shelter and to gather information to

         17  start researching community-based support services

         18  for families who may be found ineligible.

         19                 Built into the eligibility process

         20  are multiple instances where family workers, program

         21  supervisors and attorneys work together in

         22  determining a family's eligibility for shelter.

         23                 In addition, attorneys engage in

         24  several quality assurance reviews, both prior to the

         25  mid-course conference, just before the final
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          2  determination is made. And if an ineligible family

          3  so chooses, a face-to-face legal conference

          4  conducted before a DHS attorney who has the

          5  authority to reverse the ineligible finding.

          6                 These safeguards are in addition to

          7  the families right to an expedited State Fair

          8  Hearing to challenge the agency's final

          9  determination of ineligibility.

         10                 Many applicants who are found

         11  ineligible after their ten-day conditional placement

         12  return to the community. In some cases families

         13  decide to return to PATH to reapply for shelter,

         14  either because they disagree with our decision or

         15  because they have new information to share that they

         16  believe will have an impact on our eligibility

         17  determination.

         18                 That brings me to a brief discussion

         19  about our reapplicant procedure which was approved

         20  by the State and the court in 2005.

         21                 At the outset, it is important to

         22  bear in mind that families have the ability to apply

         23  for shelter an unlimited number of times,

         24  notwithstanding previous ineligibility

         25  determinations, and that they have a right to a
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          2  legal conference and a State Fair hearing on every

          3  application.

          4                 In April 2005 we sought the Court's

          5  permission to implement the reapplicant procedure

          6  for families to reapply for temporary housing

          7  assistance within 90 days after being found

          8  ineligible for shelter because they have a housing

          9  option.

         10                 Under the procedure, families are

         11  assessed quickly to determine if an immediate need

         12  is present. If an immediate need is present, that

         13  is, a family member alleges child abuse or domestic

         14  violence, or the family, or the host family has been

         15  evicted from the primary residence, DHS provides

         16  immediate need for shelter, pending investigation in

         17  the determination of the family's reapplication.

         18                 When there is a significant and

         19  immediate threat to health or safety, DHS also

         20  provides shelter while the investigation is pending.

         21                 When there is no immediate need, DHS

         22  investigates the family's eligibility but does not

         23  provide conditional shelter during its

         24  investigation. Instead, the family is referred to

         25  the Resource Room where dedicated, highly trained
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          2  MSWs work with the family to transition them back to

          3  the community.

          4                 This practice is consistent with the

          5  Special Master Panel's recommendation that we

          6  operate PATH on a business hours model and that we

          7  develop a process for handling families who are

          8  ineligible for shelter, offering them assistance to

          9  ease their transition back to the community without

         10  the provision of shelter.

         11                 The State approved reapplicant

         12  procedure which the court upheld over two years ago

         13  allows DHS not to shelter those families during the

         14  pendency of their reapplication. And in fact, many

         15  families who were found not eligible for immediate

         16  needs shelter and are not given an overnight

         17  placement return to their community.

         18                 The reapplicant procedure is designed

         19  to address a major that was inherent in the intake

         20  and eligibility process before it was revamped.

         21                 Historically DHS provided shelter to

         22  every reapplicant on every reapplication, regardless

         23  of immediate need. This created a perverse incentive

         24  for some families to stay in the process for

         25  multiple and continued reapplications. This calls
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          2  for significant disruption in children's lives and

          3  required significant staff time and other resources

          4  to serve this persistent sub population of families

          5  who continually sought free public shelter but did

          6  not need it.

          7                 It caused severe bottlenecking of the

          8  intake and eligibility process and intolerable

          9  overcrowding at the EAU. As a result, families truly

         10  in need of shelter experienced multiple overnight

         11  placements. Worse, overnight stays sleeping in

         12  chairs and on the floor of the EAU. This process has

         13  been in place and was working effectively for over a

         14  year.

         15                 Recently, DHS became aware of a

         16  discrete but growing number of families who have

         17  been found ineligible because they have an available

         18  housing option but continue to come to PATH after

         19  5:00 p.m. for a late-night placement.

         20                 From August 2006 to August 2007, DHS

         21  saw a 102 percent increase in the number of families

         22  coming in after 5:00 p.m. for late-night placements.

         23  This is simply an unacceptable situation. It is not

         24  fair to have children and families in a constant

         25  state of motion, experiencing disruption in
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          2  employment, school and family life, as they attempt

          3  to secure shelter late into the night on a daily

          4  basis, even if it is of their own choosing.

          5                 As of Friday, October 12th, 2007,

          6  families returning to PATH after 5:00 p.m. who

          7  previously received ten days of conditional shelter,

          8  who have an open reapplication and who have not

          9  shown an immediate need for shelter pending

         10  consideration of their reapplication, are no longer

         11  given late arrival accommodations.

         12                 Under our new policy, we no longer

         13  permit families to move in and out of the late

         14  arrival placements to the detriment of the family

         15  unit and in particular to the detriment of their

         16  children. If upon reapplication the family alleges a

         17  change in circumstance, PATH staff will assess

         18  whether they have an immediate need for shelter

         19  pursuant to the applicable criteria, and if so,

         20  provide them with conditional placement.

         21                 If, however, the family does not

         22  present a change in circumstances, it gives rise to

         23  an immediate need, the family will not be provided

         24  with shelter.

         25                 Instead, the family is referred to
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          2  the Resource Room and provided with funds for

          3  transportation to return to their available housing

          4  option.

          5                 If the family requests a legal

          6  conference, one will be scheduled for them on the

          7  following day.

          8                 In total, 16 families have returned

          9  after 5:00 p.m. seeking a late-night placement. Of

         10  this group, 11 families were not given a placement,

         11  while five families did receive a placement.

         12                 In contrast to the first few days of

         13  implementation, over the past several nights we have

         14  seen zero to one family per night returning for a

         15  late-night placement. The impact on the family is

         16  tangible. The evening hours of PATH no longer evoke

         17  images of the EAU, and instead are quite calm and

         18  full of the restored dignity the intake center seeks

         19  to offer. Late new arrivals have also been cut in

         20  half.

         21                 As with any social service benefit,

         22  clients who are found ineligible for shelter can

         23  appeal to the State for a fair hearing where an

         24  administrative law judge reviews the determination.

         25                 In Calendar Year 2007, 769 families
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          2  disagreed with our determination and requested a

          3  fair hearing.

          4                 DHS's initial determination was

          5  upheld 92 percent of the time, which by any standard

          6  we think is an A.

          7                 This further reaffirms our position

          8  that we have created a fair and accurate system in

          9  determining eligibility.

         10                 The Resource Room was established in

         11  July of 2005 following a recommendation made by the

         12  Special Master Panel, operating from 10:00 a.m. to

         13  10:00 p.m. seven days a week, 365 days a year. The

         14  Resource Room's primary goal is to provide

         15  ineligible families with referral to community-based

         16  organizations that offer services specific to meet

         17  their individual needs, whether that be mental

         18  health or substance abuse services, child care,

         19  legal services or benefits advocacy, educational or

         20  vocational training to enable them to live

         21  independently in their community.

         22                 Through crisis intervention,

         23  mediation and counseling, the social worker helps

         24  the ineligible family realize that shelter is not

         25  the only option and works to develop an
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          2  individualized service plan specifically tailored to

          3  the family's individual needs.

          4                 The success we are seeing with the

          5  Resource Room since implementing the new policy

          6  indicates that clients are more likely to work with

          7  us in developing a plan to return to the community

          8  if they know that repeated late-night placements are

          9  not available.

         10                 Since we implemented the new

         11  procedure, 60 reapplicants were found ineligible for

         12  immediate needs shelter. Thirteen reapplicants or 22

         13  percent accepted Diversion services back to the

         14  community and actually withdrew their application

         15  with PATH. The families diverted were assisted,

         16  relocated to housing options outside of New York

         17  City, to be reunited with family, or in returning to

         18  a housing option in the City. In all cases, the

         19  Resource Room Social Workers are following up with

         20  clients for three weeks to ensure that they are

         21  receiving all the services they need to remain

         22  stably housed in the community.

         23                 The success should not be taken

         24  lightly. The agency has invested a great deal of

         25  resources focused on creating and enhancing programs
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          2  that will provide clients with better opportunities

          3  to stay in their communities and avoid shelter.

          4                 Currently we are expanding our

          5  innovative community-based prevention program

          6  HomeBase citywide. In May 2007 we expanded Diversion

          7  services with PATH, placing HomeBase representatives

          8  on site to work with DHS Diversion staff and helping

          9  families avoid entering into shelter, and by

         10  doubling HRA's Diversion staff at PATH from 13 to 26

         11  trained Diversion workers.

         12                 These achievements, coupled with the

         13  City's development of the Advantage New York, its

         14  new improved rental assistance program for shelter

         15  clients, demonstrate our enduring commitment to

         16  effectuate positive improvement and change for the

         17  benefit of the families we serve.

         18                 The Advantage New York Program is a

         19  powerful resource and one that is helping a growing

         20  number of families move from shelter to permanent

         21  housing.

         22                 Since implementation, more than 1,200

         23  families have left shelter with an Advantage

         24  subsidy. Our new policy is yet another example of

         25  the City taking action to protect the process that
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          2  successfully has met the needs of those who it is

          3  designed to serve and to avoid the crises of the

          4  past.

          5                 So far the policy's impact on the

          6  practice of seeking late-night arrival placements

          7  has been positive. As of last night, the overall

          8  number of families seeking late arrival placements

          9  has declined by some 46 percent.

         10                 Our new policy is working. It has

         11  made a dramatic difference in our ability to help

         12  families who are most in need of emergency shelter.

         13  It is helping to restore order at PATH, and

         14  strengthen a system that is dedicated to providing

         15  supportive services to homeless families.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the

         17  opportunity to present this testimony, and I'm

         18  prepared to answer any questions you or members of

         19  the Council may have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner. We appreciate that.

         22                 I'd like to welcome Council Member

         23  Helen Diane Foster of the Bronx, and Council Member

         24  Gale Brewer of Manhattan.

         25                 Commissioner, let me make sure I
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          2  heard you correctly, that the number of families

          3  that were not given temporary housing under the new

          4  policy is 11 families; is that correct?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Through last

          6  night, that is correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, in the

          8  course of less than two weeks of the policy actually

          9  being in place, 12 days of the policy, it would be

         10  11 families, or 11 days of the policy it would be 11

         11  families; is that correct?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. How many

         14  children in those families total, do you know?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I do not know, but

         16  we can get you that number.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. I want to

         18  say at the outset, this is very, very important to

         19  us in this discussion going forward, that it is

         20  crucial, when we talk about families, that says a

         21  lot right there, but we want to also start talking

         22  about how many people this affects, including

         23  especially how many children, how many young

         24  children, and in this conversation going forward,

         25  we're going to need to know those numbers very
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          2  specifically.

          3                 Now, Commissioner, of the 11

          4  families, which obviously is several dozen people,

          5  where did they go? What do you know about where they

          6  went after they were rejected for temporary housing?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We know that these

          8  11 families were families that had originally

          9  applied for shelter, had received ten days of

         10  conditional shelter, while the investigation was

         11  done and while a field investigation was conducted,

         12  as I've described in the testimony, determined

         13  whether they had another housing option, the result

         14  of that investigation was that they had another

         15  housing option, therefore they were initially found

         16  ineligible. We know that they then left. We know

         17  that they then returned to PATH and reapplied for

         18  shelter. And we know that when they did that, they

         19  were again assessed, determined whether they had an

         20  immediate need for shelter, and we know that they

         21  were found not to have an immediate need for

         22  shelter, and we know that they then left PATH a

         23  second time and returned after five in search of a

         24  late night placement and that those 11 families that

         25  we described, under these circumstances, were then
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          2  asked to return to that housing option. We then know

          3  that they left PATH. And that's the extent of what

          4  we know with respect to their final destination.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. I have

          6  never doubted your decency as a human being. I am

          7  surprised on a managerial level that you don't know

          8  what happened, considering this was a new policy, to

          9  say the least, a controversial policy, one that a

         10  lot of people in the City Council, a lot of people

         11  in the community have been paying very close

         12  attention to, I am surprised that no one in DHS has

         13  provided you the information of knowing specifically

         14  what happened with these 11 families, because I

         15  would think you would be very interested in knowing

         16  whether your assumptions were true or not about

         17  where they would go.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, as

         19  people leave PATH, they are obviously free to go

         20  wherever they choose to go, including back to the

         21  housing option that we have determined that they

         22  have.

         23                 Now, we also are very clear that if

         24  there is a change in circumstance, if they try to

         25  return to that housing option and for whatever
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          2  reason can't, there is a change in circumstance,

          3  they can return to us. They tell us what that change

          4  in circumstance is. At that point in time we'll make

          5  an assessment to determine whether that change in

          6  circumstance rises to the level of having an

          7  immediate need.

          8                 In a couple of cases over the first

          9  several nights, that, in fact, happened, and that's

         10  really one of the major checks and balances on the

         11  system.

         12                 If we say you have another housing

         13  option, you're found ineligible for shelter, you

         14  don't have an immediate need and we ask you to

         15  return to your housing option, many people do. There

         16  are other people that will attempt to do that and

         17  there may be something else going on that actually

         18  may prevent them. And they come back again and give

         19  us that new information. If it rises to the level of

         20  change in circumstance that requires immediate need,

         21  they were then given shelter.

         22                 And, again, that happened at least

         23  once on the first night the policy was being

         24  implemented, and once again on the second night

         25  where families who were initially found not to have
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          2  an immediate need, brought new information forward,

          3  and were then placed conditionally for another ten

          4  days so we could determine, complete an

          5  investigation and determine whether the new

          6  information in fact may make them now eligible for

          7  shelter.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well,

          9  Commissioner, as this hearing progresses, we're

         10  going to talk a lot about the eligibility process

         11  and what the accuracy of that process is, what the

         12  success or failure of that process is. We'll come to

         13  that in a moment. Obviously I don't accept

         14  respectfully your logic that the only thing that

         15  would lead to a reassessment would be a

         16  quote/unquote change of circumstance, because we

         17  know already that a certain number of the original

         18  determinations were wrong.

         19                 So, a family coming and saying we

         20  don't have a place to go, we told you that before,

         21  you said we did but we never did, we're out of

         22  options, they may not show an evident change in

         23  circumstances because, in fact, they were right the

         24  first time, and your process didn't acknowledge

         25  that. But put that aside for a moment, I want to
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          2  stay on the question of what happened to these 11

          3  families. This group of 11 families, again, that's

          4  20 or 30 or more human beings, many of them young

          5  children. And this has only been 11, 12 days of the

          6  new policy, so you can imagine every week there will

          7  be more and more families potentially going through

          8  this.

          9                 So, I'm interested to know what we

         10  know, because if, in fact, every single one of them

         11  went back to an acceptable situation, that would be

         12  something that would speak in favor of your policy.

         13  But if they didn't, if as we've heard, they ended up

         14  staying on a church floor or staying in a McDonalds

         15  or some other type of location that's not meant to

         16  be a place for a family to sleep, that means the

         17  policy is not working.

         18                 So, has anyone at DHS tracked what

         19  happened to each of those families?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: As I said before,

         21  the answer is no.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         23                 COMMISSIONER HESS: When families

         24  leave PATH they can go wherever they choose to go.

         25  We hope that they return to the housing option that
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          2  we investigated and that we knew them to have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, we're

          4  going to have testimony a little later on from

          5  Reverend Martha Overall of the St. Ann's Episcopal

          6  Church in the Bronx, which is near PATH, and she did

          7  put up several families in question. Again, this is

          8  a photo, you don't have to take my word for it, but

          9  I believe it's accurate. This is a photo of a family

         10  that was turned away, one of the 11 families,

         11  sleeping on a church floor.

         12                 I can't believe you feel good about

         13  that, and I can't believe you think this policy is

         14  succeeding if this is the outcome.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I don't feel good

         16  about that picture at all, Mr. Chairman. In fact, I

         17  find, as I would imagine you do, that particular

         18  picture to be very disturbing. What I don't know is

         19  whether that family had the ability to go back to

         20  another housing option and for whatever reason chose

         21  not to. I don't know that. I don't know if that

         22  family had a situational change that may have risen

         23  to the level where they could have gotten

         24  conditional shelter and they didn't return, they

         25  instead went to the church for whatever reason. I
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          2  don't know that.

          3                 But I do agree with you that folks

          4  sleeping on the basement of a church floor is not

          5  what we want to see. And, in fact, we did make some

          6  overtures to try to determine what families, if any,

          7  may have been on that church floor, and try to

          8  better understand that and we're not provided that

          9  information.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well,

         11  Commissioner, you know that a lot of us in the

         12  Council did not agree with this policy, did not

         13  agree with the way it was suddenly brought up

         14  without what any of us would regard as consultation

         15  or public debate, but I would think the fact that

         16  you're acknowledging you don't know would be reason

         17  for you to wonder about the policy itself. I would

         18  think that until you can prove to yourself that

         19  families actually do have the positive options that

         20  your workers think they have, that you wouldn't be

         21  comfortable implementing this policy.

         22                 Underlying this is the question of

         23  how are we confirming that these other housing

         24  options exist. I'm questioning whether we know for a

         25  fact beyond any shadow of a doubt that that family
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          2  has a better place to go. Because who would go sleep

          3  on a church floor if they had a better place to go?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's a fair

          5  question, and the answer is that we go through an

          6  investigative process that is much more thorough and

          7  complete than any other City in this country has

          8  ever gone through.

          9                 We actually send field investigators

         10  out to visiting the housing before they enter the

         11  shelter system, before they show up at PATH, we go

         12  into that housing whenever possible. We look at the

         13  living space. We interview the primary tenants. All

         14  the things that I tried to describe in the testimony

         15  happen for each and every family that applies. And

         16  it happens as it was described in my testimony. And,

         17  so, that is to say that these are not arbitrary

         18  decisions that are made, you know, some kind of

         19  willy-nilly. These are things, decisions that are

         20  made after there is a thorough investigation of over

         21  ten days, including field visits by field

         22  investigators and that consider all the available

         23  information, and before they make a decision with

         24  respect to eligibility.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But that's not
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          2  true on a reapplication respectfully. You're not

          3  claiming, I've never heard you claim in all of our

          4  discussions that on a reapplication you're

          5  guaranteeing that your workers are able to contact

          6  the family members in question and verify whether

          7  the space is available or not.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Reapplicants who

          9  go through the reapplication procedure you are quite

         10  right. Reapplicants who go through the reapplication

         11  procedure have been found ineligible within the

         12  previous 90 days. And, so, when they come in and

         13  reapply, what we try to determine is whether there

         14  have been a change in circumstance or new

         15  information is available that would suggest that the

         16  original determination needs to be reconsidered, and

         17  therefore that family needs to be housed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay,

         19  Commissioner, I'm going to turn to my colleagues

         20  because I know they all are very concerned. I just

         21  want to note this is respectfully circular logic. If

         22  we acknowledge that a number of people are turned

         23  down initially wrongly, and even we'll come to all

         24  the numbers, you and I will go through them in Q and

         25  A, but even in your most rosie estimates, a certain
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          2  number of people are turned away wrongly. And then

          3  you come back a second time and say, wait a minute,

          4  I was turned down but I really am in need. And there

          5  is not a second investigation, there is simply a

          6  question has anything changed? Well, no, nothing has

          7  changed because I'm still in need, I always was in

          8  need, and then they're out. I don't follow that as

          9  being acceptable practice with families with young

         10  children. That's the thing that gets me. Because we

         11  don't know what happens to them next. We don't know

         12  whether they actually have a place to go back to.

         13  We're not tracking it, and so we could be putting

         14  children in harm's way inadvertently. It's not your

         15  goal, I know that, but it could happen. And it could

         16  also be the beginning of street homelessness

         17  reasserting itself, which is the last thing anyone

         18  wants in this City.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, look, I

         20  really, I have to talk about the street homeless

         21  piece. I don't think there is any question that this

         22  Administration is doing everything we can to reduce

         23  the number of people in general sleeping on our

         24  streets. We have gone to extraordinary measures to

         25  create new outreach teams, new housing options, new
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          2  strategies in every borough of this City to reduce

          3  the number of people in the streets, and we've seen

          4  some success and we're going to see a lot more

          5  success.

          6                 The last thing that I want, the last

          7  thing that this Administration wants, is families on

          8  the street. Or any individuals being added to the

          9  number of people that are on our streets. And, so,

         10  this policy is not about that in any way. If someone

         11  needs to go to the streets, it's because they do not

         12  have another housing option. And if they don't have

         13  another housing option, we need to be giving them

         14  conditional placement, going through the

         15  investigative process again, and figuring out what's

         16  going on there. If they really don't have another

         17  housing option, they need to be in the shelter, as

         18  36,000 men, women and children were last night. And,

         19  so, for anyone to suggest, and I know that you

         20  weren't suggesting this, but for anybody to suggest

         21  that we've tried to craft a policy that's going to

         22  lead to families living on the streets, it's just

         23  not right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now,

         25  Commissioner, I've been asked repeatedly by the
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          2  media and others, is this somehow a cynical effort

          3  to deal with the burden of the two-thirds goal. And

          4  I have said consistently I can't believe that. But I

          5  will say to you that I can't believe this encourages

          6  people who may be in real need to keep coming

          7  forward. And, so, it is fair to say that if someone

          8  feels they're in need but there is not really an

          9  option in going to DHS, I don't know where that

         10  leads. If someone goes, and even with no bad intent

         11  inadvertently ends up leaving PATH without an

         12  option, I don't know where that leads. I think there

         13  is too many unanswered questions. And, Commissioner,

         14  this is all based on your chart in your testimony on

         15  this concept of chronic abusers, but to be a chronic

         16  abuser, it means someone would be coming back

         17  constantly and in effect trying to string together a

         18  bunch of applications into non-stop shelter, and I

         19  don't see from the numbers you present here any huge

         20  number of people doing that. You've got thousands

         21  and thousands of people in the shelter system and

         22  you're talking about dozens of people who have

         23  attempted to come in late at night for whatever

         24  reason, and, again, a chronic abuser would be

         25  someone who came back, you know, ten, 20 times in a
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          2  row. I don't see you having these kind of numbers to

          3  suggest a need to radically change your policy.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, I

          5  frankly think you just hit on a very important

          6  point, that we shouldn't get lost. You raised the

          7  question, and I think properly so, about what is

          8  going to make PATH, or the intake center for

          9  families with children in our City, an easier place

         10  to come into, right? Because we don't want to create

         11  a situation where people don't come in for whatever

         12  reason that truly need our help. And I think this is

         13  a very important point. Up until last Wednesday at

         14  night, PATH had become fairly chaotic with families

         15  all over the place, inside and out. I have to tell

         16  you that I was absolutely afraid that if we

         17  continued, families that were legitimately without

         18  any housing options may show up at the front door of

         19  PATH and see it as looking so chaotic that they

         20  didn't want to enter.

         21                 I can tell you absolutely that after

         22  the first night of this new policy being in effect,

         23  and admittedly, that reasonable people can disagree

         24  on any policy, but I have to say that just after the

         25  first night, having a 46 percent reduction in
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          2  families coming back for late-night shelter, brought

          3  the whole temperature down, much less chaotic, much

          4  more humane, much more friendly and welcoming for

          5  families that had no housing options that were

          6  coming in and we were able to focus on those

          7  families much more effectively and efficiently and

          8  humanely, and I know that that's what we all want.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner, I

         10  respectfully think, I'm going to turn to Council

         11  Member Lappin on this, I respectfully think this

         12  policy was not based on any trend sufficient enough

         13  to require such a radical change, and I also think

         14  for those 11 families it's not a question of how

         15  orderly PATH was, you know, they didn't get shelter

         16  and you don't know what that means for them. And,

         17  so, that to me is where our focus should be. Those

         18  are the people, the only thing we don't know about

         19  those people is they didn't get shelter, that's it.

         20  And we don't know what happens next.

         21                 So, I don't consider that a victory

         22  for a new policy, but I will come back to you to ask

         23  you more about the numbers here and about the

         24  eligibility process. In the meantime, let me turn to

         25  my colleagues.
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          2                 Council Member Lappin.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman. And it is scary to think about those 11

          5  families and what happened to them and where those

          6  children slept over the last ten days.

          7                 The question I have is, Commissioner,

          8  you mentioned a couple of times in your testimony

          9  that your process and your approach ensures

         10  accuracy, as if you don't make mistakes. But 32

         11  percent of the people who apply on the second, the

         12  third, the fourth, or the fifth try are deemed

         13  eligible. And that's a huge percentage. Those are

         14  people who are eligible but were turned away. So,

         15  what's your response to that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Let me try to

         17  explain it this way. I assume those numbers came off

         18  of our website. The numbers that have been presented

         19  on our website have been presented the way they are

         20  currently presented for a long time. And in fact, I

         21  would present the numbers very differently, if we

         22  were starting from scratch today. So, let me give

         23  you a couple of examples.

         24                 First and foremost, the numbers on

         25  the website include the combination of families with
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          2  children and adult families. Two distinctly

          3  different populations are mixed together in that

          4  number.

          5                 Second, when you look at people to

          6  come in and apply for shelter, families with

          7  children, what you see is on the first application,

          8  and I won't get these numbers exact, but, you know,

          9  I have Dr. Schretzman that can go through some

         10  numbers for us in greater detail, what happens when

         11  families come in to apply is about a third of the

         12  families on the first application are found

         13  eligible. About a third don't complete the process.

         14  They may leave during the process. And about a third

         15  are found ineligible.

         16                 Now, when you look at the numbers on

         17  the website that show some families are found

         18  eligible in the second application or the third or

         19  the fourth or whatever, if families come in, for

         20  example, and apply but never complete the process,

         21  and they're found to have -- what we call MOA, they

         22  left before the process kind of finished, they then

         23  would be considered to have been found eligible on a

         24  second or third or fourth application. So, all those

         25  numbers kind of blend together. You can't determine,
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          2  and I know everybody wants to have this actual

          3  number of error rate, and I'll do what I can to get

          4  us there, but you can't say, you can't reasonably

          5  determine that there is an error rate of one in

          6  three or whatever based on these commingled numbers

          7  that are shown on the website.

          8                 Now, let me just spend a minute, if I

          9  may, to continue to answer the question, to take you

         10  through what we do know. What we do know is that if

         11  you take all the total number of applications that

         12  we get, right? for a period of time, and you figure

         13  out how many of those applicants who were initially

         14  found to be ineligible are ultimately found

         15  eligible, right? Because that's what you're really

         16  asking. That number is 8.8 percent. Now, that 8.8

         17  percent includes some families that didn't complete

         18  the process, what we called M08. And, so, if you

         19  take that group out of the 8.8 percent, and you look

         20  strictly at families that were initially found

         21  ineligible and then became eligible at some point in

         22  time because they had, and maybe they were found

         23  ineligible because they were found ineligible

         24  because we thought they had a housing option, this

         25  is what we're talking about here, they ultimately
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          2  became eligible, that number is 4.7 percent. Now, if

          3  you look at the 4.7 percent you can't conclude, I

          4  can't conclude, and don't conclude that they're all

          5  errors. There are a significant number of families

          6  that we found ineligible properly, given the

          7  guidelines that we use, their circumstances changed,

          8  they came back and reapplied, and so we got the

          9  first eligibility determination of ineligible right,

         10  and I would say we got the second eligibility

         11  determination of eligible right, because of those

         12  change in circumstance.

         13                 And, so, the number that you would

         14  have to conclude, if you're looking for an error

         15  rate, it would be something less than the 4.7. I

         16  don't know exactly what that would be. But let me

         17  put kind of one other fact that I mentioned in the

         18  testimony kind of into this mix.

         19                 Every family that is found to be

         20  ineligible has the right to a State Fair Hearing

         21  before an Administrative Law Judge. The past year

         22  there were 750 some, I think I cite the number in

         23  the testimony of families that went that route. They

         24  said we think DHS got it wrong and we want to go to

         25  a State Fair Hearing and have an Administrative Law
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          2  Judge rule on this. It happened over 700 times. Of

          3  all those times, the Administrative Law Judge ruled

          4  in DHS's favor 92 percent of the time.

          5                 So, if you wanted to look at this

          6  alleged error rate, I would be the first to tell you

          7  that DHS is not perfect. We make errors, and that's

          8  regrettable, but we do the best we can to minimize

          9  those areas, and we do everything we can to build in

         10  safe guards into the process so we can catch these

         11  things along the way. But, no, we're not perfect.

         12                 But at the end of the day, if you

         13  look at this reversal rate, those occasions so far

         14  this year where an Administrative Law Judge has

         15  reversed a DHS decision, it's 37 cases. And, again,

         16  that's not perfect. If one really wanted to push it,

         17  you could say we made an error in those 37 cases, 37

         18  families, based upon the decision of the

         19  Administrative Law Judge. So, in the Administrative

         20  Law Judge's opinion, that was the outcome. That's

         21  what I can tell you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That's 37

         23  families. That's 37 kids or pregnant women who --

         24                 COMMISSIONER HESS: No question about

         25  it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: -- A mistake

          3  was made, and now --

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And now we're

          6  saying, and we can talk a lot about statistics, I

          7  threw out statistics because those are the ones that

          8  we obtained from DHS, but these are lives. These are

          9  people, they're not statistics, and we're going to

         10  hear from some of them today. So, we can debate

         11  whether 8.8 percent is adequate or not, but I would

         12  say if there are people and there are children who

         13  need shelter, we should be supplying it to them and

         14  not forcing them to go to an Administrative Law

         15  Judge to say the City made a mistake, and that's why

         16  you slept on the floor in McDonalds or a church.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Now Council Member Gale Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         22                 I have a question about, first of all

         23  picking up on Council Member Lappin, what percentage

         24  of families at the Fair Hearings have legal counsel?

         25  Could you let us know if you don't know?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think the

          3  answer, Councilwoman, is that I believe that

          4  families that request a State Fair Hearing certainly

          5  can have legal representation. I think the actual

          6  number that have legal representation with them at

          7  the hearings is relatively small. I don't know the

          8  exact number but I think it's relatively small.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, if you

         10  could maybe find out why that is.

         11                 The other question I have is, there

         12  are 11 families now, 37 families who were in

         13  transition, but into the future, forget the past for

         14  a minute, there could be families coming up with the

         15  same kind of issues. So, the question is in the

         16  future -- I am, some people call me walking 3-1-1,

         17  because I think I know all the resources that are

         18  out there. So, my question is about the Resource

         19  Room and how the Resource Room works, staff works

         20  with the local community. Now, how does that work?

         21  You can train people. This is not science, this is

         22  an art, in terms of I believe human services is,

         23  it's being human, it's trying to understand the

         24  resources that are out there, developing contacts,

         25  making them work, particularly for safety net.
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          2                 So, my question is, when a family is

          3  denied, after all resources, but even before that,

          4  how do you relate to the neighborhood?

          5                 Let me give you an example. You refer

          6  to somebody to the best substance abuse program, but

          7  maybe there is no spot, maybe it's not the right

          8  program for them. I mean, I'm obviously saying why

          9  can't you use Council members, community boards

         10  where we know every blade of grass in our

         11  neighborhood? You tell me, I'm sending you three

         12  families, Gale, believe me, I'll find a place for

         13  them to stay. So, the question is, do the families

         14  come generally from some neighborhoods? And if so,

         15  what are we doing to try to figure out some kind of

         16  neighborhood response that might help compliment

         17  what your Resource Room is doing, as opposed to

         18  we're doing all we can with our staff? What can you

         19  do to help locally?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: You know, it's a

         21  very important question. As you know, Councilwoman,

         22  this is why we have been so excited about the early

         23  results of our HomeBase community prevention

         24  centers, and why we're expanding those centers now

         25  Citywide.
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          2                 The Resource Room is in close contact

          3  and coordinates very closely with our Home Base

          4  facilities, as well as with other resources that are

          5  in the community. The idea is for the Resource Room

          6  to act as kind of a bridge between that family and

          7  the resources that they'll need in their community

          8  in order to remain housed in their community and not

          9  need to return to shelter. And we think this is

         10  very, very important. And the truth is that I think

         11  we're all better off to the extent that we can help

         12  families remain in the community and not need to

         13  enter our shelter system. And to the extent that

         14  they do, we want to be able to help them come back

         15  to the community and again be connected to all those

         16  supportive services as soon as they move back.

         17                 The Resource Room Social Workers

         18  certainly as mediators, advisors, problem solvers.

         19  They'll interact with family and friends, as well as

         20  with service providers in the community to make all

         21  those linkages in a way that will stick and support

         22  the families after they move back into the

         23  community, and so we try to be very conscious of

         24  that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I mean,
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          2  I don't want to belabor it, but I do believe that

          3  one way to look into the future of these 11 families

          4  or for others where you deem them ineligible would

          5  be to sit down, looking at your numbers, as to which

          6  communities are the ones most in need in terms of

          7  families coming to your path.

          8                 In other words, as an example, do you

          9  have the home numbers and cell numbers of the

         10  principals from which the children, school age, of

         11  the 11 families go?

         12                 You know what? I have the home number

         13  and the cell number of all 29 principals in my

         14  district, and if you tell me that there is a problem

         15  with a child, I'll get right on the phone with the

         16  principal and vice-versa.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'm writing that

         18  down.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And I

         20  bet all of my colleagues can do the same. So, I'm

         21  just saying in general you're missing the boat,

         22  because those 11 families, we could have taken care

         23  of. Somebody could have taken care of those 11

         24  families. Now, there are confidentiality issues,

         25  there are privacy issues, but we need a system so
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          2  that nobody is left out. If you deem them

          3  ineligible, then there should be another step that

          4  you could pass the buck, the family could decide if

          5  they want the buck passed. There needs to be the

          6  community board, there needs to be another level

          7  here that could assist you, and I think in the end

          8  we would all solve the problem together.

          9                 What is the relationship with the

         10  schools? How does that work vis-a-vis your Resource

         11  Room?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We do have

         13  representatives in the school district at PATH, so

         14  they are available. I don't know that they have

         15  quite the level of access or information that you

         16  do, that you've described. And we can always think

         17  of ways to be more comprehensive, but generally --

         18  not generally, specifically any family that is found

         19  ineligible for shelter is referred to the Resource

         20  Room, and the Resource Room attends the

         21  mid-conference, the mid-point conference for that

         22  reason as well. So, if we think the family is likely

         23  to become ineligible, we try to begin working with

         24  that family on how we can link them back to

         25  community supports and services, even before the
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          2  ultimate determination is made.

          3                 And, so, can we look at how we do

          4  that and figure out ways to work with you and others

          5  to even beef that up a little bit more? Absolutely.

          6  And we're certainly willing and open to do that. But

          7  we do try comprehensively to assist families that

          8  are found ineligible through the Resource Room and

          9  through all of our HomeBase services and through

         10  HRA. And as I mentioned in the testimony, I have to

         11  say that Commissioner Doar at HRA has been

         12  extraordinarily supportive. When I asked him just a

         13  few short months ago to double his diversion staff

         14  at PATH so that we could provide a lot more

         15  diversion opportunities to families, he did it very

         16  quickly and I appreciate that.

         17                 Okay, I don't want to belabor the

         18  point. I believe there are many reasons why people

         19  can't go back home, or to their overcrowded

         20  situation or the challenging environment that

         21  they're in, and I do think that for those families,

         22  obviously you need a process, the process needs to

         23  be something that is fair, and I think there will be

         24  many more discussions about that, and you have many

         25  people to testify. I do think you are missing out on
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          2  a resource in a very complicated City where you

          3  could be looking a little bit further. If it means

          4  all of us meeting with the Resource Room, so be it,

          5  but it needs to be something that every last

          6  opportunity is there before we end up in Barbara

          7  Chalkee's friend's church.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         10  Council member. Now Council Member Tom White.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 Commissioner, I am always somewhat

         14  perplexed when we mention comparables, like New York

         15  City is doing more than any other City in the United

         16  States. We have to measure New York City by New York

         17  City. This is where we live. I think that's a true

         18  measurement of what we do. I mean, because there may

         19  be some cities that don't do anything. And if we do

         20  two percent we look better. So, I think we should

         21  measure ourselves, you know, based on New Yorkers.

         22                 The problem that I'm having is with

         23  this ten-day period, and the investigative process,

         24  what exactly are you investigating?

         25                 I mean, in general. Let's just take
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          2  any case, a mother and a child, two children, they

          3  were living somewhere before. They no longer live

          4  there anymore and they come to PATH, what is it that

          5  you want to know?

          6                 Because you're talking about, I

          7  believe, 45 pages on an interview form? Application?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: No, 14 pages on

          9  the application. The 45, Council Member, was the

         10  number of pages the eligibility guidelines, that we

         11  referred to as we get to an eligibility decision.

         12                 What we're trying to do through the

         13  application process and through the initial

         14  investigation is do a couple of things.

         15                 We want to get a picture of the

         16  family and kind of what's going on and what kind of

         17  support they can benefit from short and long term.

         18  You know, are medically they okay or not?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: What I'm trying

         20  to say is, they were living somewhere.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The

         23  investigators go back into the field where they used

         24  to live.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's correct.

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Am I correct?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The place could

          5  have been over-crowded. Is it a family member, or is

          6  it a place they paid rent? What was it?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: All those kinds of

          8  questions we try to determine through the ten-day

          9  period and as part of the field investigation, and

         10  all of that goes to the final determination as to

         11  whether some family is eligible or not.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, one of

         13  the things that the Committee has been through was a

         14  lot of situations where children were abused, and it

         15  appears as though, you know, policy is policy, and

         16  we have policy, implementation takes on a different

         17  character of that policy. And the other thing is the

         18  culture that we must take a look at.

         19                 For instance, you could be

         20  interviewing a person in need of home shelter for

         21  the children. They're no so much concerned about

         22  their safety, they're concerned about their

         23  children's safety.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Certainly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And you're not
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          2  going to get that information on the interview,

          3  because as you said in your testimony, you know,

          4  people have to go through a trauma type of syndrome

          5  to even seek shelter. They have their dignity,

          6  because you don't have money don't mean you don't

          7  have dignity.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And they have

         10  their self respect.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And the last

         13  thing they want to do is come to you.

         14                 So, bearing that in mind, when they

         15  do get there, all right? we just can't treat them

         16  like widgets, one through ten. There is something in

         17  there which leads to the real question I want to ask

         18  you; how many staff members are present at PATH? How

         19  many people do you have at reception?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Total staff

         21  members at PATH is something just over 300.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: How many in the

         23  Diversion Unit?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Diversion Unit is

         25  operated by HRA, and currently has 26 Diversion
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          2  workers in that unit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Is that up to

          4  par? Is there any vacant lines?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'm not aware of

          6  any vacant lines in the HRA staffing complement.

          7  HRA, as I mentioned, Council member, just a few

          8  months ago agreed to our request to double the

          9  Diversion staff from 13 to 26, and so I believe, I'm

         10  not going to say they have a day where they have

         11  somebody that calls out, but I think they're at full

         12  strength.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The team

         14  leaders come under your jurisdiction?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: They do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: How many do we

         17  have?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: The team leaders

         19  are part of our mix of over 300 staff that are on

         20  site.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We could get you

         23  the exact numbers. We have adequate team leaders to

         24  staff, all of our shifts, seven days a week.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The special
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          2  investigators, how many do you got?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Approximately 80.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. No

          5  vacancies?

          6                 COMMISSIONER HESS: There are some

          7  vacancies in our DHS complement of staff that's

          8  authorized for staff. We have a vacancy rate at the

          9  moment of just under 15 percent, and of those, we

         10  have about half of those vacant positions have new

         11  candidates in the pipeline to be able to fill those

         12  positions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And your

         14  Resource Room Social Workers?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Resource Room

         16  Social Workers is -- give me just a second. That's

         17  not on the top of my head but we'll get it for you.

         18  Fifteen MSWs are the authorized staff in the

         19  resource room. 14 of those positions are currently

         20  occupied, one is currently vacant.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. And your

         22  DHS legal staff?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Legal staff has an

         24  authorization for 34 positions, 21 of which are

         25  filled and 13 of which are vacant.
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          2                 That is one where we have a much

          3  higher vacancy rate than the average.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I just want to

          5  know, you know, the staffing pattern, because if one

          6  comes back to be interviewed a second go-round, like

          7  you have the legal reviews, that's part of the legal

          8  review team, then it's unlikely -- I mean, do they

          9  see the same attorney, or do they see a different

         10  attorney?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It depends when

         12  they come back. As you can imagine, Councilman, with

         13  24 hours seven-day-a-week operation, depending upon

         14  when someone comes back, they may or may not see the

         15  same staff.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes, I just

         17  raised that as a point of observation that it would

         18  be highly unlikely for the same attorney who turned

         19  somebody down on the first go-round would then

         20  approve them in the second go-round. So, you know, I

         21  think you should take a look at that and assign to a

         22  different attorney which might have a different

         23  view.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, I think

         25  that's a good point. I frankly think, Council
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          2  member, that's why the Special Master Panel and

          3  others recommended a series of kind of safeguards

          4  and checks and balances.

          5                 So, legal reviews go through a

          6  supervisor as well, and any families found

          7  ineligible, even before they request a State Fair

          8  Hearing, has the opportunity to ask for a legal

          9  conference before a different DHS legal counsel.

         10  And, so, that gets to your point, which is do we

         11  have a second attorney available to review a case,

         12  and can that second attorney not only a review a

         13  case, but can the second attorney reverse the

         14  decision of the first? And the answer is yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: You're welcome.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you,

         20  Commissioner. The Chair just stepped out and he told

         21  me I was next.

         22                 I don't know you as well as Council

         23  Member DeBlasio does, but I know sitting here it's

         24  very difficult for me to sit through this because I

         25  hear your answers and I know that the people that
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          2  are affected, the bulk of them are from my community

          3  and the bulk of them are black and Latino women. So,

          4  it's difficult sitting in this seat as a black

          5  woman, hearing, coming from the head of the

          6  Department, a white male, saying these types of

          7  things are happening and it was 11 families and we

          8  don't know what happened to them. So, now it's for

          9  me, it's difficult, and I want to make sure in

         10  asking my questions I'm respectful, but I want to

         11  preface it by saying that it's quite disturbing.

         12                 So, let me get right into questions.

         13                 When you say, refer to the Special

         14  Master Panel of June 2004 that was made up, who do

         15  you know was on that panel?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: You're predating

         17  me, so I'll do the best I can.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Sure.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: John Feerick, Gail

         20  Nayowith --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: In terms of,

         22  you don't have to give me their names, their

         23  backgrounds or professions, and I know you know,

         24  Gale.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, they were
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          2  appointed by the court.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: They were

          5  appointed by the court to take a look at PATH, the

          6  operation of PATH, the eligibility process, and come

          7  back with recommendations to the Court.

          8                 They spent, as I understand it, some

          9  two years doing that, and as a result they made a

         10  series of recommendations that we, the City, have

         11  implemented.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Do we know if

         13  any of those people that made up this panel were

         14  themselves homeless or had been through this

         15  process?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I do not know the

         17  answer to that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. The

         19  reason I ask that is that someone can do a study on

         20  racism, and tell me, you know, we found these

         21  factors to exist, and here is the criteria. For

         22  someone who is black and knows that racism is alive

         23  and well, and knows about being followed in a store,

         24  my perspective will be very different than those

         25  coming in and looking and saying that this doesn't
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          2  exist or not.

          3                 Do you know the breakdown,

          4  male/female, white/black of this panel?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think it was one

          6  female/two male.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Color. Do you

          8  know the breakdown of color?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Three members of

         10  the panel were all white.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And

         12  what's the make-up of the people that receive the

         13  services through PATH?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We'll get you the

         15  exact make-up but it is a heavily -- I would say the

         16  majority is non-white.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Non-white.

         18                 So, therein, at least for me,

         19  indicates that there could be severe flaws with the

         20  panel if it's not representing the people that

         21  actually use the services.

         22                 When you talk about available housing

         23  options, and you, after doing these investigations,

         24  have found that they have available housing options,

         25  what classifies or what is the criteria for adequate
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          2  housing or adequate available housing options?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: The kinds of

          4  things that the investigators take into

          5  consideration is the living space. They look at the

          6  living space. There are a number of rooms. The

          7  gender of those current occupants. They have

          8  conversation with the primary tenant. So they look

          9  at the adequacy of the space, and do their best,

         10  make a determination as to whether the family can

         11  reasonably return there, and if so, is it safe and

         12  appropriate? And they use some 45 pages of

         13  guidelines in the Eligibility Guidelines Manual to

         14  guide them through that determination.

         15                 Every determination is made on a

         16  case-specific basis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Now, based

         18  upon those guidelines, if you come to my house and

         19  you say it's adequate, but I'm saying, no, they

         20  can't come here, even if I have space, then what?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It depends on the

         22  circumstances. It depends on all the information

         23  that's made available.

         24                 To try to give you a little more

         25  background, because as I'm portraying it to you
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          2  right now it is a little more general than I'd like

          3  to, I'll ask our Assistant Commissioner Carol David

          4  to speak to this point.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Good

          7  afternoon.

          8                 When a family applies for services,

          9  what we do is a comprehensive interview, which

         10  includes a 14-page interview. What we look at is the

         11  two-year housing history of the family, where they

         12  have come from, the gender, the age of the children

         13  of the family that presents in front of us, and the

         14  household that they are coming from.

         15                 We also look at criminal background.

         16  We also have a check of collateral resources, which

         17  if they have a public assistance case or if they're

         18  working, we look at all of that, and we also do a

         19  background check with ACS, so that if there are

         20  preventive services that are involved, or there is a

         21  case at the previous household, we also link with

         22  our sister agencies to look at that housing option.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: But my

         24  question is, when you do all of that, and someone

         25  has been living with me and I say no, whether I have
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          2  the space, the resources or not, and I say no, and

          3  that person is saying, you know, Helen Foster said I

          4  can't live there anymore, and they come back to you,

          5  then what happens?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We

          7  would look at the relationship between the two

          8  people. The family that is presenting in front of us

          9  and the family that is living in a household. If you

         10  have a mother/daughter type situation in which the

         11  mother and the daughter have been living together in

         12  that household since birth, we would look at that

         13  situation, interview the mother and the child and

         14  also the Resource Room Social Workers would step in,

         15  if it's a matter of family discord.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Do you adhere

         17  to other City agencies' policies? For example,

         18  public housing. There have been situations where the

         19  super, the management office and the resident has

         20  said no, and it has been viewed that that is

         21  adequate housing. Now we know that NYCHA policies

         22  don't allow that. So, do you end up in a situation

         23  where you say that's available housing options then,

         24  you know, cross over and step on another agency's

         25  toes when they're saying that is not allowed?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: With respect to

          3  NYCHA, we've had some lengthy conversation with

          4  NYCHA. They tell us that there are certain

          5  circumstances where a guest can become a short-term

          6  occupant, or a permanent occupant with their

          7  permission, and that they have to ask and they go

          8  through something of a process with NYCHA --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: With NYCHA's

         10  permission or with the occupant's permission?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Presumably it

         12  would be both.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HESS: The reason I

         15  believe it would be both, Councilwoman, is because

         16  the principal occupant or tenant would have to make

         17  the request through NYCHA.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Yes, I presume

         19  it would be both, but I know of a situation where

         20  the tenant said no because they couldn't do it

         21  anymore, the building management filled out a letter

         22  that said no this can't be done, and they were

         23  denied a shelter because that was deemed adequate or

         24  available housing option. So, my concern is what

         25  you're saying here in theory is not what's occurring

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  in practice at the actual centers.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'll try to be a

          4  little bit clearer. In the case of NYCHA, I think

          5  the disqualifying factor would probably be that

          6  NYCHA decided to take some action that could lead to

          7  a displacement for the primary tenant. And, so, I'm

          8  not familiar with the letter you're describing, but

          9  if, for example, NYCHA provided a letter to that

         10  tenant saying we're going to begin eviction

         11  procedures, certainly that changes that thought

         12  process.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And I wasn't

         14  lacking understanding. What I'm trying to say to you

         15  is that before it gets to NYCHA even saying we're at

         16  eviction procedures, if the tenant says no and the

         17  building management that runs Claremont Village or

         18  Butler Webster says this person cannot reside at

         19  this location, what is happening on the other end?

         20  Is that still deemed a housing option, adequate

         21  housing, and it goes against another City agency's

         22  policy.

         23                 So when someone says no, what then --

         24  like I can't be forced to take someone in and

         25  vice-versa. So, what I'm trying to understand is if
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          2  what you're describing, this process of

          3  investigation and the 14 page application, that does

          4  not seem to be what's happening at the actual site

          5  because people are in fact being told they are

          6  ineligible time and time again and they will come

          7  back with another piece of paper that's saying, you

          8  know, everybody is saying you can't live here, the

          9  management, the super, and it's still ineligible.

         10                 So, I'm trying to figure out what

         11  then makes someone eligible for housing.

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We'd have to look

         13  at those specific cases and we can certainly do

         14  that.

         15                 I could tell you for sure, to the

         16  extent that NYCHA says you're putting this tenancy

         17  at risk, then that's not a housing option.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Right. But

         19  see, I don't know if I'm not being clear, but I'm

         20  not even going to the point where NYCHA is saying

         21  it's a housing option. Because, you know, NYCHA is

         22  ultimately the runner of the facility, but I'm the

         23  one that lives there, and if I'm saying it's not a

         24  viable housing option, and the management that is

         25  running the building locally is saying it's viable,
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          2  it doesn't need to go to NYCHA saying you are at

          3  risk of being evicted. That, to me, is just a whole

          4  unnecessary step, if we are getting documentation

          5  from the occupant who is not a family member and the

          6  management that this person can't live there.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, if the

          8  occupant is not a family member, that also enters

          9  into it.

         10                 As the Assistant Commissioner just

         11  mentioned, we have to look at every case with its

         12  own set of facts. To the extent that it's a

         13  mother/daughter relationship and the daughter did

         14  live there for a long period of time, that's very

         15  different than a situation where there may not be a

         16  direct relationship between the applicant family and

         17  the tenant, the primary tenant. And, so, every

         18  situation is different.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Lastly, what

         20  type of training and ongoing in-service do the

         21  workers at the site receive, number one? Is there a

         22  primary person responsible for the process of

         23  getting in, so that if I'm there waiting, and I'm

         24  there all day and I have a child and I either have

         25  to go to the bathroom or feed that child and I step
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          2  out and then I come back and find my name is called,

          3  that I'm not told you're out of luck? How does that

          4  work?

          5                 But mainly I'm interested in the

          6  in-service that goes on. Because, again, what you're

          7  saying happens in theory, I don't believe it's

          8  happening in practice at the site, and there is a

          9  level of built-in hostility from the door towards

         10  those residents that are in need of this service. So

         11  that it's very adversarial. It's not the respect and

         12  dignity and it goes both ways, so I'm not saying

         13  it's just from the workers, but that's not how the

         14  PATH center is really. That's not how it is. In

         15  service.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Let's respond to

         17  the training issue first.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: And I'll ask the

         20  Assistant Commissioner to do that.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID:

         22  Depending on title, when workers are hired to work

         23  at the PATH facility, they go through a training at

         24  John Jay in terms of interviewing techniques, how to

         25  interview a family, how to interview a client, how
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          2  to ask for how to be respectful in gathering

          3  information, how to gather information. They have a

          4  training on the guidelines, the whole PATH process

          5  which is a manual, and we train in different units,

          6  but we also train together so that everyone is

          7  getting the same message and you're allowed to hear

          8  what each division is thinking and hearing and so

          9  that it's all a flow.

         10                 We train with ACS. We are all

         11  mandated reporters at PATH, we train with HRA

         12  Diversion who is on site, we have training rooms

         13  upstairs and conference rooms at PATH and every

         14  month a training in a different type topic goes on.

         15  We have some of the not-for-profit agencies come in

         16  and talk about their programs, NYCHA has come in to

         17  speak with us about what they offer and their rules

         18  and regulations, so there is ongoing training at

         19  PATH. But there is also a set of training that

         20  everyone has to receive.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Are either of

         22  you at any time at PATH?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: I am.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: You are.

         25  That's your primary location, or you float?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: No, I'm

          3  at PATH at least three days or twice a week.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: What type of

          5  --

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: And I

          7  was the Director of the EAU.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And do

          9  you, and this will be my last question, because I

         10  know Council Member Palma has a question.

         11                 How do you, in your role as Assistant

         12  Commissioner, view the centers? In terms of we've

         13  heard the testimony, is that how you see them

         14  actually running and functioning when you're there

         15  three days or three nights a week?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Yes, I

         17  do. I agree with you families are coming in with

         18  trauma and crisis, they do come sometimes, and it's

         19  stressful to come into that situation. I mean, I was

         20  the Director of the EAU for seven years, so I

         21  understand going from a 20-hour process over three

         22  days to go into a process six to eight hours. We

         23  have food there for the families, we have advocates

         24  there, and we present at the front door when we

         25  change our staffing pattern to go to path, and
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          2  working with the Special Master Panel, as a part of

          3  that whole process, because I wanted it to change.

          4  And I am actually glad that those changes did occur.

          5                 We never had social workers at EAU.

          6  We also interviewed more with court investigators

          7  and now we have family workers, and it's a holistic

          8  model that we're working on.

          9                 We doubled up with our staff with

         10  ACS, it's not just Child Welfare Specialist, it's

         11  also their MSWs in a protective services role, that

         12  they also engage the families at the mid-point

         13  conference. We never had mid-point conferences at

         14  EAU. It was just straight in the door, streamline

         15  process, and that's it. And you typically saw the

         16  same worker over and over.

         17                 At the PATH center, your family

         18  worker is like your caseworker who is following you

         19  through the process. It's just the same person on

         20  that initial application that's working with you.

         21  You have their phone number. When you come back you

         22  see them for the appointment. If they're not there,

         23  they give you their schedule, then you see their

         24  supervisor.

         25                 So, I'm at PATH and I also involve
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          2  myself in trainings.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: This is my

          4  last question for real. The three nights that you

          5  are there prior to this change, how many people did

          6  you encounter, or the number, if you know, that you

          7  felt were maybe abusing the system, versus those

          8  that really needed the services after five?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: I can't

         10  make an account of the families. It would be on an

         11  individual basis I would have to do that. But I know

         12  there has been a significant decrease in the amount

         13  of families who are coming in after 5:00, just for

         14  late night placements.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Due to this

         16  policy.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Due to

         18  this policy.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: But prior to

         20  the policy you have no idea of how many were there

         21  because they actually needed emergency shelter and

         22  how many were there because they felt like this

         23  would be a good thing to do to get shelter?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We

         25  would have to look at those numbers, no.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          4  Council member.

          5                 Now Council Member Annabel Palma.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 Commissioner, like my colleague,

          9  Helen, I also feel the same way. It's really

         10  disturbing to sit up here and while we, our goal,

         11  our goal is to reduce, I know that the

         12  Administration's goal is to reduce homelessness by a

         13  certain time, and I'm pretty sure everyone, each and

         14  everyone in this room would like to see the same

         15  thing, we would like to see people living in their

         16  own homes, having stability and their child's life

         17  not being interrupted, you know, we have a lot of

         18  work to do. And while we try to create plans and

         19  implement them, sometimes they've usually been on

         20  paper than they are when we actually try to go out

         21  and actually put them to work.

         22                 About a month ago I went to the PATH

         23  center on a Sunday morning, and I tried desperately

         24  to get in touch with you because I didn't know what

         25  was going on and I needed some guidance to help
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          2  someone that I had referred to PATH that had came

          3  into my office earlier that week, and while she had

          4  been in one of the temporary shelters waiting her

          5  10-day period, on that Sunday morning she was told

          6  she has to get out with her three kids, single mom

          7  with three kids, that she was found ineligible and

          8  she had to leave the shelter system.

          9                 She called me. I then called Council

         10  Member DeBlasio, who was instrumental in putting me

         11  in touch with Carmine Rivetti (phonetic). I actually

         12  left my cell phone number. I hope you got my

         13  message. I never got a return call from you. I won't

         14  hold it against you. I like that Gale Brewer

         15  actually raised that we should work closely

         16  together, because if you call me, I will do anything

         17  I can, whenever I can, for anyone who is in that

         18  position in my community, even going down to the

         19  PATH centers and advocating for them.

         20                 I wasn't treated really nice when I

         21  got to the PATH center. It was almost an hour later

         22  when I finally decided to tell them, listen, I'm a

         23  Council member and I'm going to advocate on behalf

         24  of this person, that then I was treated with a

         25  little bit of respect.
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          2                 And I don't think anyone should be

          3  treated, regardless of their position, the way I was

          4  treated that day. But again that's a whole other

          5  conversation.

          6                 What concerns me is, like the Council

          7  Member had raised. When these families are telling

          8  you they have nowhere to go, because people are

          9  telling them you can no longer stay with me, or as

         10  the constituent in my office, the super in her mom's

         11  building, who her mom had passed away six years

         12  prior, six years ago, had told them, oh, she died

         13  last year, and because of that technicality she was

         14  found ineligible, even though she provided a death

         15  certificate of her mom, for her mom, the lawyer at

         16  the conference was telling her, you have to get out

         17  and start the process all over. I mean, I thought it

         18  was quite unfair because she was able to produce

         19  documentation to back up her story.

         20                 I guess what I need to know is, with

         21  this new policy, that people are not going to be put

         22  through the same or be asked to reapply, if they

         23  actually have documentation on hand, do they still

         24  have to go through the whole process of starting all

         25  over again, leaving the PATH Center and leaving the
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          2  shelter and then having to come back the next

          3  morning.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Councilwoman, I

          5  have to look at the specifics of that case to get

          6  you kind of the detailed answer you deserve, and I'm

          7  happy to do that. And happy to call you and have

          8  that conversation. It's not our intent to make a

          9  process more bureaucratic than it already is or

         10  needs to be. Certainly not our intent to have people

         11  coming back and forth routinely when issues can be

         12  resolved on one visit, for example. And, so, I am

         13  concerned, and now a couple of Council members have

         14  raised the issue of dignity and respect at path,

         15  that is very concerning to me, and I know very

         16  concerning to our Assistant Commissioner and others

         17  on our staff, and that's an issue that we'll go back

         18  and take very seriously and try to figure out. We

         19  want everyone to be treated with all the dignity and

         20  respect that they deserve, whether they be a member

         21  of this Council or they be anyone else that walks

         22  through our front door.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: The numbers

         24  that you speak about, Commissioner, the 102 increase

         25  that you saw from August 2003 to 2007, were all
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          2  those new families or were those families that

          3  continue to reapply for shelter?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It's a

          5  combination. We have always had a small number of

          6  families that have come in after normal business

          7  hours, after 5:00 in the evening, and we've housed

          8  this family, and some of those families have come in

          9  for the first time, they're what we would call new

         10  clients, and then there's others that have applied

         11  before within 90 days and are there to reapply, and,

         12  you know, that's fine. There are still others that

         13  come in that would not have applied within the last

         14  90 days but applied at some point in time in the

         15  past and have come back in.

         16                 And in most of those cases, the

         17  number of families is relatively few, and in many

         18  cases those families came in for just one overnight,

         19  and we said okay.

         20                 What concerned us this spring is we

         21  saw those numbers not only increase by more than 100

         22  percent, but we saw many more families were coming

         23  in repeatedly, multiple overnight placements, and

         24  they fell into this category of families that we

         25  believe to have another housing option. And so we
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          2  wanted to encourage these families, do everything we

          3  can to encourage them to work with the Resource Room

          4  and return back to that housing and not continue to

          5  go through this practice of the overnight placements

          6  revolving through that door.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And will they

          8  continue to use the overnight placement versus

          9  finishing off the applications or?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HESS: In the group that

         11  we have implemented policy with, no. The group we

         12  had implemented the policy with had applied before,

         13  have been found to be ineligible because they have

         14  another housing option in our view, and then had

         15  come back and reapplied.

         16                 We asked them questions to determine

         17  whether they had an immediate need for shelter. We

         18  didn't find an immediate need for shelter, and so it

         19  was said to those families, we will consider your

         20  application over the next series of days and get you

         21  into an eligibility decision and we ask that you go

         22  back to your housing option and wait there, and come

         23  back and meet with us once we have the

         24  determination.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.
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          2                 And you mentioned numerous times the

          3  mid-point conference. Is that also the same as the

          4  legal conference? Can you explain?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I can. What we try

          6  to do, Councilwoman, is say this is a ten-day

          7  process. It's a fairly lengthy process and there are

          8  a lot of information that's collected both in the

          9  field investigation and both as a result of

         10  interviews at PATH. And, so, what we try to do there

         11  is before the end of the ten days, kind of get the

         12  family together with the family worker and other

         13  appropriate professionals and as a result to them

         14  say this is what we see so far. Is there other

         15  information we should be considering? Is the

         16  information we believe we have correct? And if all

         17  that is true, then this is where we think this

         18  investigation is likely to lead, an eligibility

         19  finding of eligible or of ineligible, and if it's

         20  likely based on that conference that we think it

         21  could be ineligible, we have the Resource Room there

         22  to begin working with that family to help them

         23  transition back to the community.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Then does the

         25  Resource Room then proactively engage in that
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          2  transition, or is it left up to the family, this

          3  Super X has an apartment available, go see if you

          4  can, you know, rent it or --

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: In all cases where

          6  families are found ineligible, they are referred to

          7  the Resource Room, and the Resource Room has had a

          8  significant amount of success in assisting families

          9  to return to the community.

         10                 The caveat that I would give you

         11  there is after we find someone ineligible, although

         12  we hope to go to the Resource Room, and many, many

         13  families do, some families choose not to and just

         14  leave.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And does the

         16  Resource Room also link them in the event that a

         17  family may have a closed HRA case or having

         18  problems, you know, problems attaining other

         19  resources from the City agencies; is that the

         20  linkage that they --

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes. To the extent

         22  that there is an issue with respect to public

         23  assistance or some other benefit that HRA may

         24  provide, having the HRA workers on site is helpful

         25  in beginning to deal with some of those issues.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And are

          3  domestic violence victims now treated differently

          4  than just, and I don't want to say your normal

          5  family coming in for shelter, but that someone that

          6  is not coming in as to domestic violence?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes. Any family

          8  that comes into PATH, and as part of the application

          9  process makes us aware of some domestic violence

         10  issue, they're automatically referred to the NOVA

         11  worker at HRA and they conduct their own interview

         12  and do their own investigation and make their own

         13  determination with respect to domestic violence.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And does this

         15  policy pertain to them as well, or are they excluded

         16  from this policy?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, what happens

         18  with the claim of domestic violence, if somebody was

         19  found ineligible, comes back in, reapplies, we do an

         20  immediate needs assessment and we find that domestic

         21  violence is an issue, it is presented as an issue

         22  where they would automatically get an additional 10

         23  days of conditional shelter while the investigation

         24  was conducted.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And then
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          2  lastly, I know your staff goes through the initial

          3  training, how often do you retrain the staff, and

          4  does the whole staff get retrained or just an

          5  individual?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Staff

          7  are trained in certain topics throughout the year,

          8  but specific to certain units, just on their jobs

          9  they are also trained there and we train together,

         10  we intermingle.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 And I look forward to speaking to

         15  you. My cell phone is 718-813-1899.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you so much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Didn't we ever

         18  tell you not to give out your number in public?

         19                 I want to amplify, first of all,

         20  Commissioner, that Council Member Palma was working

         21  very hard that day she called me trying to help

         22  someone in need, and I do hope that you will

         23  redouble your efforts with your staff to recognize,

         24  yes, dignity for anyone, but especially if someone

         25  is there advocating for the public, that that should
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          2  be given special weight and that it is important

          3  that you know if someone is trying to reach you,

          4  that your staff make you aware of that.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Now, I just was

          7  handed a note by Council Member Foster, and I have

          8  questions coming up right now on eligibility, but I

          9  want to ask in the beginning, she says "Can we get a

         10  copy of the 14-page application?"

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Certainly.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: "And a copy of

         13  the 45-page eligibility guidelines."

         14                 Now, you have provided this to us

         15  after one of our recent conversations. Is this the

         16  same 45-page eligibility guidelines?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It is indeed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Let me

         19  ask you while I've got them right here, when were

         20  these guidelines created?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: My understanding,

         22  Mr. Chairman, is guidelines were created I believe

         23  in 1999.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. Have they

         25  ever been updated?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: They have not been

          3  substantially updated, as I understand it, and they

          4  were created -- prior to that, 1999, my

          5  understanding is there were not such guidelines and

          6  that the creation of these guidelines was intended

          7  to kind of put all in one place for the first time,

          8  state law, state regulation, court orders, a variety

          9  of different information that was in different

         10  places that touched on eligibility and bring it all

         11  together in a way that was something that we could

         12  follow. So, that was the reason for it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just I want to

         14  get my facts straight. Please work with me. So, this

         15  document is eight years old. Is there any other

         16  document that a DHS worker trying to make an

         17  eligibility decision would use? Is there a

         18  checklist? Is there sort of a summary that every

         19  single worker has in common to create consistency?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: There are various

         21  forms. The specific one to this is the 14-page form

         22  that we've referenced that we'll provide you. We

         23  will also have to go back and look at there is a

         24  PATH manual that we use that we'll look at as well

         25  and see if that may have anything that pertains.
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          2                 I can't answer your question with

          3  certainty, but we'll come back and look. It's my

          4  belief that a combination of the 14-page document

          5  and the eligibility guidelines that you have in your

          6  hand represent the primary information that's used.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, my

          8  concern is, and I had looked this through fairly

          9  thoroughly. There is a lot of important information

         10  here, no doubt. My concern is it's eight years old,

         11  and I imagine some things have changed in the last

         12  eight years. And the people making the decisions on

         13  whether someone is eligible for shelter or not are

         14  depending on this. It's 45 pages, it's eight years

         15  old, I find it very comprehensive but not

         16  particularly easy to use, I bet.

         17                 So, my question is besides the

         18  application, don't the workers need some kind of

         19  consistent, I'm saying checklist, but it can be any

         20  kind of simple, straightforward set of standards

         21  that they can refer to as they're making these

         22  decisions that every single worker has in common.

         23  Because in fact, your point that before 1999 there

         24  were no standards or guidelines, that's troubling

         25  about the past. But even now it's great to have
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          2  guidelines but they have to be usable, or else it

          3  makes it easy for people to get the wrong

          4  determination and someone who actually deserves

          5  shelter not to get shelter.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HESS: This is why we do

          7  the level of training and retraining that we do with

          8  experienced professional staff. As you may know, Mr.

          9  Chairman, those guidelines are the result of many

         10  years of litigation, many years of court

         11  involvement, many years of evolving state regulation

         12  and a whole variety of court orders that were

         13  equally difficult to kind of meld together in a

         14  coordinated, comprehensive, understandable system.

         15  And, so, our sense of it is although those 45 pages

         16  of guidelines don't necessarily make the best

         17  bedtime reading, I think it's fair to say they are

         18  our best effort, they were the best effort of the

         19  court, to pull together in one place the guidelines

         20  that we should follow in making these

         21  determinations.

         22                 I think it's also fair to say that

         23  family situations are complex and don't easily fit

         24  into a checklist-type form. You really have to take

         25  into consideration a tremendous amount of
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          2  information in order to weigh what the right

          3  determinations are with respect to these cases.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay,

          5  Commissioner, I don't want to belabor the point. I'm

          6  just going to say something I think is common sense,

          7  which is these are not your garden variety

          8  decisions.

          9                 In other words, it's tough enough to

         10  decide whether, you know, someone deserves any kind

         11  of public benefit. That should be a difficult

         12  process in any case, but to decide whether someone

         13  gets a place to stay that night is a particularly

         14  sensitive endeavor. No one knows that better than

         15  you.

         16                 I'm simply saying it doesn't sound as

         17  up-to-date and as efficient it could be to have

         18  people having to refer to such an unwieldy document

         19  and not have something that's sort of a constant

         20  tool that they turn to that's really usable. And,

         21  so, training is great and we know we need that

         22  either way.

         23                 It raises more doubt in my mind about

         24  whether we're getting it right on the eligibility.

         25  We can debate the numbers, but I know you think that
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          2  every person who is eligible should get housing.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, it just

          5  strikes me that there is a red flag right there if

          6  we don't even have a usable document for people to

          7  work off of.

          8                 I certainly wouldn't want to be

          9  someone trying to make a decision, having to flip

         10  through 45 pages trying to figure out which of the

         11  various pieces affect that decision. I would want

         12  something that pointed me in a clearer direction.

         13  But let me move on to the numbers here.

         14                 I understand your argument around the

         15  error rate. If I'm counting correctly and you can

         16  tell me, if you disagree, but even if you accepted

         17  the eight percent number, for example, you're still

         18  talking hundreds of individuals.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I would say the

         20  eight percent was the starting point in that

         21  discussion. Where I ended at least was taking a look

         22  at those cases which had been considered by an

         23  Administrative Law Judge in a State Fair Hearing and

         24  those 37 cases that were reversed.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, we don't

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  agree on that respectfully, because it's not even a

          3  fair fight with the Law Judge because the families

          4  don't have legal representation. Obviously, DHS

          5  does. But that's not even the point. I want to take

          6  you back to a more basic point. The way your numbers

          7  from the website read, I understand why you think

          8  there may be contradictions. I think there may be

          9  some contradictions, too. Because there appears to

         10  blend in various groups of people, and what we're

         11  really interested in is people who were turned down

         12  the first time and applied a second time, we have to

         13  take out of that equation people who found some

         14  other solution. We have to take out of that equation

         15  people that for one reason or another don't give you

         16  a clear line between an original application being

         17  rejected and the second application. Because isn't

         18  that what we're really trying to test? We're trying

         19  to understand how many of the first rejections were

         20  found wrong on second or third inspections.

         21                 And, so, I feel like your numbers

         22  actually underplay the reality because you blend

         23  into your numbers people who end up not applying

         24  again, and people who end up having changes in their

         25  life for the better and one thing or another as
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          2  opposed to simply tracking people who applied and

          3  were rejected the first time, applied and accepted

          4  the second time, third time, et cetera. That would

          5  tell us really where the error rate is.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'm not sure that

          7  I would agree that, Mr. Chairman, necessarily gets

          8  to an error rate, because I think it often gets to a

          9  change in circumstance for new information that's

         10  provided that I would say is not an error. However,

         11  I do agree with you that the way the numbers are

         12  currently presented on our website is not

         13  necessarily serving today's purposes. We ought to

         14  relook at that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And I think

         16  that would help all of us. And how many families

         17  applied, you can use any measure you want, fiscal

         18  year or calendar year? Just give us a year's worth,

         19  a recent year's worth, how many families applied for

         20  shelter?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'm looking.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I think you had

         23  it in your testimony, but I don't know if it was

         24  handed in there.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Let me ask our
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          2  Deputy Commissioner for Policy and Planning, Dr.

          3  Schretzman to join me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Sure.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think I'm going

          6  to need the benefit of her wise counsel to get to

          7  that answer for you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. So I'm

          9  going to ask the question. You can use Fiscal '07,

         10  you can use Calendar '06, you can use whatever you

         11  want, just give me one year as a snapshot how many

         12  families applied for shelter.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHRETZMAN: I'm

         14  sorry that I can't answer all of your questions, but

         15  I can tell you it's approximately 20,000 families

         16  that come in over a year, and I will give you the

         17  specifics for each year and how that has actually

         18  dropped. I need to explain this, applied is often

         19  duplicate. So that means that people who apply once,

         20  they come back and they apply again. Why the website

         21  is so complicated is that we're simply looking at

         22  those people who applied, some people are eligible

         23  on the first time and they actually apply again on

         24  the second time. So, the second application could be

         25  eligible families --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

          3  that and I don't want to be disrespectful, because

          4  we have time constraints, I'm sure you do too. I'm

          5  just trying to get to, you can put it in whatever

          6  terms you want. I'm trying to get the number of

          7  actual families that apply so --

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think I'm going

          9  to have to get that number for you, to give it to

         10  you with accuracy. And I assume, are you asking, Mr.

         11  Chairman, for that number to be unduplicated?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'd like to say

         13  how many families unduplicated, because that will

         14  give us a very clear picture of every time, for

         15  example, if 1,000 families apply, and one percent

         16  are rejected, that's 10 families. I'd like to start

         17  to be able to say how many families who seek shelter

         18  don't get shelter, so we're speaking a common

         19  language.

         20                 And we understand, you know, even if

         21  you say your percentage is low, ten families, 20

         22  families, 100 families, it starts to add up to have

         23  a real impact on human beings.

         24                 I'd obviously like to also understand

         25  the progression of number of applications and what
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          2  happens over the course of time, but I would like

          3  there to be a purer look at that, in other words,

          4  not comparing families that started but didn't

          5  finish the process, comparing families who got the

          6  eligibility the first time, those who came back,

          7  what percentage got eligibility the second time, et

          8  cetera, and what that means in real number terms.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We'll get those

         10  numbers for you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, now,

         12  bottom line. I just want to say this and make sure

         13  we're on the same page, if you know a family has

         14  nowhere to go, you will give them shelter, is that

         15  true?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That is absolutely

         17  true.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. And you

         19  don't, however, on reapplication verify beyond a

         20  shadow of a doubt, that someone has a place to go.

         21  In other words, you don't have on a reapplication

         22  necessarily evidence, you don't have a visit to the

         23  home in question or an interview with a family

         24  member. You're basing the reapplication on the

         25  results of the first application. You're not going
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          2  through the thorough process the second time before

          3  you make that decision down at PATH that night, you

          4  get to stay, you get to go; is that true?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: What we do on a

          6  reapplication is we ask a series of questions to try

          7  to determine whether the circumstances have changed

          8  since the initial finding of ineligible. And if we

          9  believe the circumstances have changed, based on the

         10  information we're able to glean from the applicant,

         11  and it rises to the standard of immediate need, that

         12  we place that family for an additional ten days in

         13  shelter while we evaluate the second application.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: If we find after

         16  that discussion that we don't believe it raises to a

         17  point of an immediate need for shelter, then we say

         18  to that family, please go back to your housing

         19  option, we'll consider your application over the

         20  next so many days, and we'll call you in to give you

         21  that determination.

         22                 It's true that upon reapplication, as

         23  you described it, we do not go back and conduct

         24  another field investigation before we make that

         25  determination. That's true.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. And that

          3  to me says we are taking a risk with these families.

          4                 So, let me finish on just a couple of

          5  other points here. It seems to me that instance

          6  where there is not a thorough follow-up before the

          7  decision is made at PATH is troubling. In general,

          8  it seems to me, that there is a burden of proof

          9  being placed on families, which is questionable in

         10  terms of determining eligibility. I think we would

         11  all agree these are families in crisis. I think we

         12  would all agree that many of these are single parent

         13  families, that there's lots of burdens already on

         14  these families. We also, of course, don't want

         15  anyone cheating the system, we're not trying to fill

         16  up the shelters, we would love nothing more than for

         17  prevention to work, and permanent housing solutions

         18  to work.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We agree with you

         20  on that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But at the same

         22  time, if a family is in crisis, that's what leads

         23  them to your doorstep. I really can't believe that

         24  people are showing up on a regular basis who have a

         25  decent viable alternative.
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          2                 I agree with the New York Times

          3  Editorial Board, I don't think people are going to

          4  come with their belongings, their children, at night

          5  and wait in line in uncomfortable circumstances to

          6  board a bus lightly. I don't think people do that to

          7  gain the system. I think they do it because they're

          8  in crisis.

          9                 Your standards, to me, make it the

         10  burden on the individual in crisis to prove to you

         11  that they're in crisis when in fact that could be

         12  very, very difficult, and when you can't reach the

         13  family member and you can't do the on-site visit,

         14  because the burden of proof is on the client, they

         15  lose.

         16                 So, if you go and knock on the door

         17  of the place they say they've been staying, they've

         18  been kicked out of and you can't get entry, they

         19  lose anyway, because there is no way to prove their

         20  case.

         21                 I don't understand how that is a good

         22  way to protect vulnerable families and children. I'm

         23  sure you want to get at the truth, but it seems to

         24  me that procedure I just described, which comes

         25  right from everything we're understanding about your
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          2  process, doesn't guarantee you get at the truth, and

          3  every time we make a mistake, a family is on the

          4  street potentially.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: If we could react

          6  to that.

          7                 You're quite right that we want to

          8  get it right, that families in crisis that don't

          9  have other housing options we want to house. We

         10  housed over 36,000 men, women and children, just

         11  last night. We'll continue to offer shelter to

         12  families that we believe do not have other housing

         13  options and we'll do that every day and every night

         14  and that will continue.

         15                 There are a lot of processes that we

         16  have to go through, and we go through them and use

         17  our due diligence along the way and we try to do

         18  that, in as humane and compassionate and respectful

         19  a way as we can. And I am sure there are times when

         20  we don't get it exactly right. There are many other

         21  times when we do get it exactly right.

         22                 With respect to the specific example

         23  that you just gave, we go knock on a door, we can't

         24  -- nobody is home, we come back and find a family

         25  ineligible because we couldn't prove they went back
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          2  there - I don't believe that that is an accurate

          3  characterization of our process or our investigative

          4  process. And so --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Reapplication I

          6  believe it is.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well,

          8  reapplication we don't send somebody back. We have

          9  admitted that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We said that the

         12  field investigation is done within the last 90 days,

         13  we stick to that, but we question the family to try

         14  to determine if there has been some circumstances

         15  changed, some additional information has occurred

         16  that we should understand before we make a decision

         17  with respect to immediate needs shelter. But that is

         18  very different than the eligibility process. And we

         19  did do a field investigation.

         20                 In some cases that field

         21  investigation may have been done in the last few

         22  days. In other cases it's possible that field

         23  investigation was done, I don't know, 80 days ago.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And in the

         25  absence of the ability to reach a family within the
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          2  first instance?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: In the first

          4  instance, I'll ask our Assistant Commissioner to

          5  react to that. I don't believe the way it was

          6  characterized is accurate.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Thank

          8  you. We do not find families ineligible if we

          9  perform a field visit and the primary tenant is not

         10  home, that means the client is ineligible, we don't

         11  do that.

         12                 What we do is use other resources. If

         13  it's a NYCHA apartment, we'll just call the

         14  management office, we want to know how many

         15  bedrooms, who is on the lease, and et cetera. We

         16  will actually have additional days for the family in

         17  shelter while we verify that information.

         18                 At the mid-point conference, we'll

         19  have the family come back. We went to this

         20  residence, is it the exact residence? Did you make a

         21  mistake? Did you mean a three instead of a four? So,

         22  the mid-point conference is actually the opportunity

         23  to just look at the case record again, to see if the

         24  information we have is accurate, and we perform more

         25  field visits, but we just don't find a family
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          2  ineligible because we could not get in.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But if you

          4  can't talk to the family members in question,

          5  because, again, we've got to recognize the crises

          6  the other family members could be going through,

          7  we've got to recognize changing circumstances in the

          8  host family, which often are complexed.

          9                 You know, the superintendent, the

         10  Building Manager, can't necessarily shed light on

         11  that. So, even in the first instance, if you are

         12  ready to find someone ineligible and you haven't

         13  spoken to the relevant family member, I don't know

         14  how you have the information you need.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We

         16  issue appointment slips. If a field team goes out

         17  and we knock on the primary tenant's door and there

         18  is no answer, we leave appointment slips with phone

         19  numbers. Call us back. Tell us when we should show

         20  up. Tell us what's a good time for you. Call us

         21  back. And sometimes we get phone calls from the

         22  primary tenant saying, okay, come back this time or

         23  this is what my housing option looks like. We look

         24  at the leases, we'll call the management company --

         25  well, how many bedrooms? How many children in the
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          2  apartment?

          3                 We'll also look at our welfare

          4  management system from HRA to look at the cases that

          5  is rent going to that actual housing option, and who

          6  was actually on that case. So, there are a lot of

          7  other ways to do it without just speaking to the

          8  primary tenant.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I can tell

         10  you're being very diligent. I'm not questioning

         11  that. I can tell you're trying to use different

         12  techniques, I'm just saying something that I think

         13  is common sense. If there is a crisis between family

         14  members, if it's, you know, they're doubled up, if

         15  it's a sickness, if it's a mental health problem.

         16  You know, you have a family that is in conflict with

         17  itself, and in fact, and you know this is often

         18  generational too, that young mother with one or two

         19  children just cannot go back there. The only way

         20  you're going to know in a lot of instances is to ask

         21  the relatives directly. If you can't reach them, you

         22  can't put the burden of proof on the applicant.

         23  That's all I'm saying. I'm not doubting you try

         24  other methods. I'm just saying I think that's one

         25  example right there of where the first determination
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          2  could be faulty. Not because of negligence, because

          3  of lack of information that you tried to get and

          4  then it starts a bit of a vicious cycle, because

          5  then they come back to the path and because of the

          6  new rules there's a lower standard of proof in

          7  effect, and once again, they're found ineligible.

          8                 So, one of the things I said to you,

          9  Commissioner, before this hearing is a lot of this

         10  gets back to the basic effectiveness of the

         11  eligibility process. And I think there are valid

         12  questions about that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Mr. Chair?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Let me just

         16  ask for this process that you just explained, is it

         17  different when it's not a family member?

         18                 Go ahead. Let me let you answer.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We look

         20  at it depending on the relationship of the primary

         21  tenant and the applicant.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay. And when

         23  you say relationship, define that. So, if Annabel

         24  needs somewhere to say our relationship is, she is

         25  my friend, if I say, and this goes back to earlier,
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          2  if I say, no, she can't stay here, you putting a

          3  slip under my door, you're putting the onus on me

          4  and I'm already saying no, so I don't need to

          5  respond.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: What we

          7  would do is try to contact the primary tenant to get

          8  the primary tenant's response in that.

          9                 A mother and daughter relationship --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Right. I

         11  understand.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: -- Is

         13  different than a friend.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Right. I

         15  understand that. That's why I'm asking is the

         16  process different? Because if I am saying this is my

         17  friend, or maybe she's not my friend any longer, no,

         18  you trying to get in touch with me, there is nothing

         19  that is going to motivate me to call you back. So

         20  then it goes back to what the Council Member

         21  DeBlasio was saying that who then assumes the fault

         22  in that point? Do you hold it against Annabel

         23  because I'm not going to call you back because I

         24  don't want her on my couch anymore, whether I have

         25  room or not.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: No, we

          3  don't. And that's not the typical case in which

          4  people don't get back to us, because of the fact

          5  that we do try to engage these families, these

          6  primary tenants. It's not the typical case where

          7  someone would say I'm not calling you back because

          8  we leave appointments saying call us, we'll be at

          9  your house at this time, if you are a working person

         10  we'll come after seven, or what have you. And we

         11  also do field investigations on Saturday and

         12  Sundays.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Is there a

         14  master checklist, for lack of a better word, that

         15  when I say to you Annabel has been turned down, that

         16  you can pull up a list and say, you know, the

         17  application was complete, bla bla bla, whatever was

         18  complete, but she was found ineligible because she

         19  had available housing options at her brother's

         20  house; is there one objective checklist that we go

         21  through so that we know consistently people are

         22  being found ineligible because of this objective

         23  standard and are finally being found eligible

         24  because of this objective standard. Is there

         25  something tangible?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We

          3  summarize the 14-page interview, the field

          4  investigation, and the mid-point conference and all

          5  the collateral documentation that's presented either

          6  by the client, the primary tenant or during the

          7  investigation. And since we do have unique families,

          8  we just don't use a check-off to mark off yes/no

          9  yes/no yes/no. But in conjunction with our

         10  guidelines, we do make those decisions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay, I

         12  understand. When I say check list, no, I'm not

         13  looking for yes/no, kind of what the application is

         14  calling for, but what I'm saying is that how do we

         15  know our situations are exactly similar, and she's

         16  been deemed eligible and I've been deemed

         17  ineligible. Are you able to pull up information

         18  where you say either you made a mistake on my case

         19  and I should be eligible based on these criterias or

         20  she should have been ineligible based on -- like I'm

         21  trying to find out how do you uniformly make sure

         22  that you are denying people correctly?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: Because

         24  not just one person is making an eligibility

         25  determination. It's a team. If I am a family worker,
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          2  that case is discussed with my supervisor. That case

          3  is also at mid-point conference again discussed with

          4  a client. It is also discussed with a quality

          5  assurance attorney, and then before a final decision

          6  is made, the supervisor looks at it again, and then

          7  another quality assurance check is made.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: We have all of

          9  those checkpoints in place and we still have the

         10  number of people being deemed ineligible when

         11  they're coming back again, and that application

         12  isn't relooked at; am I understanding that

         13  correctly?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: No.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I don't

         16  either. Okay. So, all of these people look at the

         17  first application, all the information, and it's

         18  deemed ineligible, when, in fact, maybe it was

         19  eligible the first time, when it comes back the

         20  second time and you're looking for, you know, same

         21  information, same everything else, nothing is

         22  changed. They don't do a full investigation.

         23                 So, we have a whole team of people

         24  looking at the first application that was in fact

         25  eligible to begin with.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DAVID: We give

          3  the applicant throughout the whole process, during

          4  all of the conferences, the legal conference and a

          5  State Fair hearing the opportunity to give

          6  additional information.

          7                 We also, if necessary, do an

          8  additional visit and make telephone calls if

          9  necessary on the application; or if the applicant

         10  alleges a different circumstance, we have to verify

         11  that change.

         12                 We may not physically go out and make

         13  a field at all times, but we do verify.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay, I'll

         15  stop.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We don't want

         17  you to stop, I just think we're in a disagreement

         18  here with our guests.

         19                 All right, let me take your last few

         20  points very quickly.

         21                 Commissioner, I haven't heard you

         22  respond to the point raised in the Times Editorial.

         23  Why would a family subject themselves, particularly

         24  single mother, multiple children, why would they

         25  come back night-after-night and go through that, if
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          2  they had a viable alternative?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, I

          4  don't know the answer to that. What I know is that

          5  families and family relationships are complicated. I

          6  think that because of the complex nature of family

          7  relationships, because we live in a City where there

          8  are many families that are living in doubled up

          9  situations routinely, because rents are tight and

         10  tough, I think there is a lot of reasons why

         11  everybody wants to live in their own place, to have

         12  their own home. And so I think these are complicated

         13  issues. What we try to do with the limited resource

         14  of emergency shelter is focus that resource on

         15  families that truly have no other options.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: So, I don't know

         18  that I have the, you know, the crystal ball that

         19  gives me the accurate answer on that. My guess is it

         20  varies from family to family.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. You

         22  obviously focus you new policy on this question of

         23  quote/unquote chronic abusers. I am still at a loss.

         24  Even looking at your chart in your testimony, I'm

         25  not getting a clear definition. How frequently
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          2  someone has to keep coming back over a period of

          3  time, the same family over and over, for you to feel

          4  they are a chronic abuser, because the numbers you

          5  gave us showed a total number of people who showed

          6  up. Now, I would argue, by the way, that that

          7  correlates with an increasingly difficult housing

          8  market, and you know, higher costs and less

          9  affordable housing available. I think there is a lot

         10  of things happening that could cause that increase

         11  and people showing up in the evenings.

         12                 How many times does a family have to

         13  come back, come back, come back for you to believe

         14  they are a chronic abuser? Certainly not once or

         15  twice, I assume?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think that, and

         17  the policy is directed toward any family that has

         18  applied for shelter, had ten days of condition

         19  shelter, been found ineligible for another housing

         20  option, has returned every applicant, found not to

         21  have an immediate needs and has come back at night.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So even once

         23  you're saying makes them a chronic abuser?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I wouldn't use the

         25  term chronic abuser. What I'm saying is that the
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          2  policy that has been implemented with respect to the

          3  11 families that have returned after five so far, we

          4  have not differentiated between those families as to

          5  which ones have come in once or 30 times before that

          6  night. We set a day when we implemented the policy,

          7  any family that returned after five that met the

          8  criteria effective October 12th, we applied the

          9  policy with.

         10                 And, so, up until now that's been 11

         11  families.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. I just

         13  want to make what I think is the logic point and

         14  then we'll move on, that a family that felt their

         15  application was unfairly turned down the first time,

         16  shows up again, and the reason they may show up

         17  after five o'clock may have something to do with the

         18  other crises they're going through. You know, I

         19  don't think we know from everything we've talked

         20  about today, what the truth is about that family.

         21  And, so, if you had a pattern of people coming back,

         22  you know, dozens and dozens of times trying to gain

         23  on the system, that would be one thing, but it's

         24  obvious your policy applies to someone even if

         25  they've just come back one more time to try to
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          2  appeal their original decision.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: No, it was not to

          4  appeal their original decision.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, if

          6  they're reapplying, why is that not appealing their

          7  original decision?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Look, if people

          9  reapply, right? they'll get the full opportunity to

         10  have that new application considered based on the

         11  facts in the first application, and any and all new

         12  information. And they'll go through a process to do

         13  that. That's not kind of what we're talking about

         14  here. What we're talking about is those families

         15  that we believe have gone to that point, having

         16  another housing option, or not returning to that

         17  housing option. They're coming back after five.

         18                 The only thing that I know absolutely

         19  for sure is that PATH, and the environment of PATH

         20  is much more humane today than it was on the day

         21  before or the week before we implemented the policy,

         22  and that's been as a result of the 46 percent

         23  reduction in the number of families coming in for an

         24  overnight placement. And it allows us to focus more

         25  on those families that truly do not have other

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  housing options.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. We

          4  obviously don't agree on that point. I'm going to

          5  finish on the two big picture points. Prevention. I

          6  would think that this overall environment we're in

          7  would cause you to go deeper into prevention.

          8                 You know I have appreciated some of

          9  the elements for your Advantage Program. As I've

         10  said publicly, I've always appreciated the fact that

         11  in the last year or two, after much disagreement

         12  previously the Administration has embraced some

         13  substantial preventive approaches, but I still think

         14  it's not anywhere near what it could be, including

         15  an investment, considering how much we save and we

         16  succeed at prevention, in human terms and financial

         17  terms, and I have certainly heard of ample evidence

         18  of your HomeBase offices being so maxed out they

         19  turn to other nearby non-profits looking for help to

         20  handle individual clients they just can't get to.

         21                 So, my first question on that, or my

         22  basic question on that is simply isn't it time to go

         23  further with our preventative approach? Isn't that

         24  what will also make people not need to come into the

         25  PATH office?

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, as I

          3  have said to you many times before, I appreciate

          4  your support and your vision with respect to

          5  prevention. I think we agree that we should be doing

          6  everything we can with respect to helping families

          7  remain in the community and get the support they

          8  need in the community, as opposed to needing to come

          9  into a shelter system.

         10                 We will continue to work with you and

         11  others to achieve that end, and to the extent that

         12  we have opportunity to expand our work in this area,

         13  we will certainly take advantage of those

         14  opportunities, because it is an important component

         15  of our strategy to help families remain in the

         16  community and not need to enter the shelter system

         17  to begin with.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right,

         19  lastly, permanent housing. We've mentioned at the

         20  outset, Section 8 is one option, NYCHA is another

         21  option. Creating additional permanent housing is a

         22  third option.

         23                 I've asked you from time to time for

         24  numbers as to how many permanent units you have at

         25  your disposal, as you try and solve a crisis which
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          2  I'm sure the day you arrived here from Philadelphia

          3  you hoped would be a decreasing crisis and

          4  unfortunately for you it's become an increasing

          5  crisis while you're trying to meet this laudable

          6  two-thirds goal.

          7                 How many today, how many units do you

          8  have in the pipeline, whether Section 8 vouchers,

          9  NYCHA units or newly built, newly rehabbed, whatever

         10  it may be, affordable housing that you as the

         11  Commissioner can tap and use for your clients?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: The number one

         13  resource that we have today, Mr. Chairman, is our

         14  Advantage housing subsidies.

         15                 And we have, for families in the

         16  shelter system that fit any of the four categories

         17  of being eligible for the Advantage subsides, we

         18  have at this point an open-ended allotment of those

         19  subsidies. And, so, we would like to see, and this

         20  is an area that we need to keep working on, we would

         21  like to see as many families as possible every week

         22  moving out of shelter, utilizing those subsidies and

         23  moving back into the community.

         24                 As you know, we have worked very hard

         25  to replace the old housing program, which I'm not
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          2  going to name because I'm not talking about it

          3  anymore, with the new Advantage subsidies that we

          4  believe are far superior to the old program. And,

          5  so, we can move hundreds of families a week. We've

          6  been averaging about 80 families a week so far,

          7  moving out of shelter into those units with those

          8  housing subsidies. That number has been increasing.

          9  I think it will increase further. I expect it will

         10  be in excess of 100 families a week here before

         11  long. But we could move even twice that number if

         12  we're able to gain access to apartment offers that

         13  would pass the Section 8 rigorous inspection that

         14  you know we now conduct on every one of those units.

         15  And, so, the best option we have are those housing

         16  subsidies and an open ended subsidy for families

         17  with children that meet the criteria of any of those

         18  four subsidies.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But you and I

         20  both agree the market is not exactly entirely your

         21  friend right now, with what is happening in general

         22  in our housing market. So, I'm going to restate the

         23  question. It was a very simple question

         24  respectfully.

         25                 How many permanent, not belittling
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          2  the importance of the Advantage Program, how many

          3  permanent units do you command, in terms of NYCHA,

          4  Section 8, for other types of permanent affordable

          5  housing? Because in the end the Advantage Program is

          6  only going to be so good as all the other work we do

          7  to help the families and the availability of the

          8  units in the market. The market closes down to

          9  low-income people, you know, those other pieces are

         10  about all you got.

         11                 So, I'm trying to understand, at any

         12  given point, can you say I know I've got X hundred

         13  or X thousand units I can turn to as I constantly

         14  try and get people out of shelter. Not stop them at

         15  the front door with Advantage and try and put them

         16  on a different path, but out of shelter into

         17  permanent solution; do you have a number?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I don't have a

         19  number on the top of my head that I can give you at

         20  this very moment. But I will get you a number.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         22                 Commissioner, I want to thank you for

         23  being here and spending this time with us. Needless

         24  to say, we don't agree on some of these issues, and

         25  needless to say we will be following up. To say the
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          2  least, the Council would like to very closely track

          3  what is happening with the numbers at PATH. We would

          4  urge you very strongly to track the outcomes for

          5  each family turned away so we can get a better sense

          6  of what's happening. And we will certainly be having

          7  hearings in the not so distant future to follow-up.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         11  Thank you to you and your team.

         12                 I would like to now call up our

         13  second panel. Steve Banks, Attorney-In-Charge of

         14  Legal Aid Society. I believe he has one of his

         15  clients with him. And Reverend Martha Overall of St.

         16  Ann's Episcopal Church.

         17                 Okay, everyone, please. We have to do

         18  this quickly.

         19                 Okay, who would like to start the

         20  testimony?

         21                 MR. BANKS: I'm going to go ahead.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Go ahead,

         23  Steve.

         24                 MR. BANKS: My name is Steven Banks.

         25  I'm the Attorney-In-Chief of The Legal Aid Society.
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          2  I'm here with Don Allen, one of our clients, along

          3  with his family. And also Reverend Martha Overall is

          4  here with us as well.

          5                 I think it might be helpful, if this

          6  is acceptable to you to first address a number of

          7  the issues that the Commissioner raised and that

          8  your questions raised.

          9                 You were provided with various pieces

         10  of information. I think it would be helpful if we

         11  provided you with other information for the

         12  Committee to consider and then I think Mr. Allen's

         13  family's story is illustrative of the issues that

         14  Chair and Council Member Foster focused on, as well

         15  as other Council members.

         16                 First of all, the City, the

         17  Department's testimony is that it is unaware of what

         18  happened to various of the 16 families that were

         19  subjected to having shelter taken away from them

         20  under the new policy. We actually have information

         21  concerning five of those families. And we'll be

         22  providing you with that information. We will provide

         23  you with information about statistics that you asked

         24  about that will frame the overall problem, and then

         25  the real human suffering behind those statistics I
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          2  think as the number of the Council members focused

          3  on, that they're real human beings, children, and

          4  adults behind all of this.

          5                 First of all, much has been presented

          6  with respect to how many people are actually

          7  affected by the process. Looking at the City's

          8  website, the City's website tells us for the

          9  Department of Homeless Services that in Fiscal Year

         10  2007 there were 18,915 unduplicated, unduplicated

         11  families who were applicants for shelter.

         12                 The City's website further tells us

         13  that there were 11,792 who became eligible. The

         14  City's website further tells us that 67 percent of

         15  the families were found eligible on the first

         16  application, 21 on their second, seven on the third,

         17  third on the fourth, and so forth. I don't

         18  understand the argument that says that the data on

         19  the website is unreliable when the categories on the

         20  website are very clear as to what is being reported,

         21  and this, of course, was hailed as a major

         22  advancement that there would be transparency with

         23  presenting data on a website that the public could

         24  see what was going on in terms of the operation of

         25  the agency.
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          2                 With respect to Council Member

          3  Foster's question regarding the make-up of the

          4  families that are seeking shelter, that, too, is

          5  available on the website, and it's overwhelmingly

          6  people of color who are seeking shelter from the

          7  City.

          8                 There are four different ways that we

          9  can give you to look at the underlying eligibility

         10  process problems. First of all, the Department of

         11  Homeless Services in litigation was required to

         12  provide The Legal Aid Society with data from 2006

         13  and we secured the services of an expert who

         14  provided services pro bono from NYRA (phonetic) and

         15  that data tells us that 51.8 percent of all families

         16  who were originally found ineligible, because they

         17  purportedly had alternative housing available and

         18  reapplied, were subsequently found eligible by the

         19  Department of Homeless Services. 51.8 percent of

         20  families who were originally found ineligible

         21  because they purportedly had alternative housing

         22  available and who reapplied were subsequently found

         23  eligible.

         24                 The data would tell you in 2006 that

         25  at best it's one out of four families who were found
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          2  eligible, ultimately were found improperly

          3  ineligible on the first time around. If you look at

          4  the website, it would tell you it's one out of

          5  three. So, it's either a C or a D in terms of

          6  performance, in terms of numbers of families who are

          7  ultimately found eligible or percentages of

          8  families.

          9                 Further, much was made with respect

         10  to the availability of safetynet in terms of the

         11  State Fair Hearing process. The data was presented

         12  to you that 92 percent of families who go to State

         13  Fair Hearings lose them, and as many of you pointed

         14  out, that's because the agency is represented by one

         15  and sometimes two lawyers and the families are

         16  unrepresented.

         17                 But the more telling statistic is not

         18  how many families lose their hearings, but how many

         19  families who lose their hearings and reapply are

         20  found eligible.

         21                 Forty-two percent, nearly half of the

         22  families, that lost their hearings were ultimately

         23  found eligible. There is something wrong with an

         24  eligibility process in which 92 percent of the

         25  families lose their hearings, 42 percent of those
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          2  who reapply after losing are still found eligible.

          3                 Now, much has been said as well about

          4  the chain of circumstances. And in looking at the

          5  data that was provided to The Legal Aid Society in

          6  the litigation by the City, the data will tell you

          7  that the median time, the median time between an

          8  ineligibility determination and the date of the

          9  filing of the application, upon which the family

         10  ultimately was successful, the median time between a

         11  finding of ineligibility and the filing of the next

         12  application which is successful is a day. Is a day.

         13  And even that's a little misleading. Because if you

         14  apply after 5:00, the application is not considered

         15  to be filed until the next day.

         16                 So, it's simply not credible that

         17  these reversals are because of changed

         18  circumstances.

         19                 The numbers that are involved with

         20  this are not small numbers. If you look at, again,

         21  it was data that was provided to us, 801 families

         22  during 2006, were initially found ineligible,

         23  reapplied, were found eligible. Of those, 435 were

         24  found eligible based upon a claim available housing

         25  ineligibility finding.
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          2                 In addition, before the court, and

          3  there is currently pending litigation challenging

          4  the failure to properly evaluate families who apply

          5  for shelter based upon these statistics, the

          6  families that we brought before the Court, 39

          7  families, five of them spent time sleeping in public

          8  spaces either outside, public hallways, hospital

          9  waiting room, while they were reapplying for

         10  shelter. This is even before the most recent policy.

         11  And we're going to get to the five families out of

         12  the 16 that we can tell you about today.

         13                 So, by any measure, there is a

         14  problem with the eligibility process if you look at

         15  it in terms of percentages of people who are getting

         16  reversals when they reapply, if you look at it in

         17  terms of gross numbers, hundreds, if you look at it

         18  in terms of what's the gap between the ineligibility

         19  or the eligibility, or if you look at it in terms of

         20  what is the real human impact. So, out of 39

         21  families before the Court, five of them in public

         22  spaces. Plainly there is a problem here.

         23                 And it was against that backdrop that

         24  we brought litigation a year ago, seeking relief

         25  from the Court to address the systemic errors.
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          2                 Much has been said as well about the

          3  fact that there are eligibility procedures in place,

          4  and they were looked at by a Special Master Panel,

          5  and a Special Master Panel existed and the City has

          6  the right to turn away people. That's only half the

          7  story. That's only half the story.

          8                 The Special Master Panel said that

          9  the eligibility process was broken, and it needed to

         10  be fixed. And in that context the Special Master

         11  Panel talked about having a process for dealing with

         12  ineligibles who didn't need shelter. But the key

         13  underlying finding was that the eligibility process

         14  was broken and needed to be fixed, and the Special

         15  Masters recommended that this City work with The

         16  Legal Aid Society to Address those problems. The

         17  City declined to do so.

         18                 It is true that the City has the

         19  ability to implement a reapplicant policy. But that

         20  also is only half the story because in September

         21  2005 a Court, Supreme Court, said that the City may

         22  not turn away families, even with its reapplicant

         23  procedure. It may not turn away families without

         24  first making sure that there is alternative housing

         25  available.
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          2                 If you review the case files up at

          3  the PATH office, and I welcome you to do so, subject

          4  to client confidentiality, you will find that that

          5  is not the standard that is being applied at the

          6  PATH office. It's not a government must make sure

          7  this other alternative housing is available, it's a

          8  the family did not meet its burden of proving that

          9  there was housing that wasn't available to them.

         10  This is also against the background of a Court

         11  ruling from the late '90s against the prior

         12  administration that said that given the fact that

         13  children are involved here, the New York State

         14  Constitution puts a higher burden on government, and

         15  once a family comes forth with some evidence of

         16  homelessness, once a family comes forth with some

         17  evidence of homelessness, it's government's

         18  responsibility to protect children.

         19                 Yet, if you take the words of the

         20  court order, make sure that other housing is

         21  available and you look at those case files you'll

         22  see not a word that applies to that standard, you'll

         23  see in fact the opposite standard is what is being

         24  applied at the PATH center.

         25                 Further, the word has been used that
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          2  families found it a loophole, and that's how this

          3  post 5:00 p.m. process began, that there was a

          4  loophole that families found. But you'll see if you

          5  look in those case files, you'll see a phrase

          6  throughout going back for months that overnight

          7  shelter was given consistent with agency mandate.

          8  Overnight shelter was given consistent with agency

          9  mandate.

         10                 It's not that the families found a

         11  loophole, it's that while litigation was pending,

         12  the City began to use this apply after 5:00 p.m. and

         13  you can get shelter process. They told families you

         14  couldn't get shelter unless you applied after 5:00

         15  p.m., after you were found ineligible. So, families

         16  applied after 5:00 p.m., because that is what they

         17  were told to do.

         18                 Flip ahead to the current period.

         19                 Mid-September the litigation, trying

         20  to address the fact that the City was turning away

         21  hundreds of families improperly and finding them

         22  ineligible for shelter and then forcing them to

         23  reapply only to be found eligible, submitted to the

         24  court in September, we're awaiting a decision on

         25  that.
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          2                 Three weeks later, the City announces

          3  on October 10th, that beginning the 12th they're now

          4  going to for these reapplicant families not even

          5  give shelter when they reapply. Not even give

          6  shelter when they reapply.

          7                 You've got it in our testimony, and

          8  Mr. Allen can give you in very graphic terms, but I

          9  think it bears, for the record it bears reviewing

         10  some of the families out of the 16 who have been

         11  turned away, what happened to them and how careful

         12  was the process? And can we be certain that at a

         13  rate of 11 families every two weeks times 26 weeks

         14  that we're not going to have hundreds of children

         15  improperly turned away in the way that these

         16  children have been turned away.

         17                 Take the YM family, the YM family.

         18  They were turned away on Friday night, the 12th. Ms.

         19  YM and her daughter have been homeless because they

         20  were evicted from a housing stability plus apartment

         21  because they couldn't pay the rent.

         22                 And I know this Committee has played

         23  a leadership role in focusing on all of the problems

         24  for the Housing Stability Plus Program. We were

         25  assured that, don't worry, when it gets time to
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          2  people having the step off, it will be okay. This

          3  woman was evicted because she couldn't pay the rent.

          4  The City found the family ineligible saying that she

          5  could stay at her grandmother's apartment with the

          6  child.

          7                 The family was turned away on Friday

          8  night with no place to go. They spent the Friday

          9  night the 12th, the Saturday night, the 13th,

         10  sleeping on the floor of St. Ann's Church, no other

         11  place to go. We contacted the City at 9:00 p.m. on

         12  Saturday night, senior lawyers in the City advising

         13  them of their circumstances of the YM family, not a

         14  single response at all. Not a single response at

         15  all. The YM family spent that Sunday night, the

         16  14th, at Lincoln Hospital in the emergency room.

         17  They spent the night of the 15th also sleeping on

         18  the floor. This is now several days after senior

         19  lawyers were put on notice about this case. I

         20  presume the lawyers talked to the clients on the

         21  City side.

         22                 It wasn't until Tuesday after the

         23  City told us that they had made the correct decision

         24  in this, and all the other cases I'm about to

         25  recite, it wasn't until Tuesday that it came to
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          2  light that this family, the YM family, was one of

          3  the eight percent of the families that had won a

          4  hearing on their own. They had won a state hearing.

          5  They had used the marvelous safetynet check that was

          6  described previously. They won their hearing at the

          7  beginning of August, but they hadn't received a copy

          8  of the decision. The City had received a copy of the

          9  decision. It was represented by lawyers at that

         10  hearing. Yet, this family was turned away on Friday

         11  night the 12th, slept in the church, October 12th,

         12  October 13th, emergency room October 14th, the

         13  church after senior people are all aware of this,

         14  the night of the 15th, under the threat of

         15  litigation, they housed the family on the night of

         16  the 16th. That's one of the 16 families.

         17                 Would you like to hear the next

         18  family? Mr. Allen is going to describe in great

         19  detail his circumstances, but all I can tell you

         20  that is until last night, October 12th, Mr. Allen

         21  and his two sons, aged 20 and 11, have been sleeping

         22  on the floor of the church. They were one of the

         23  families that they called to the attention to the

         24  City on the night of the 13th. We remember it well.

         25  We sent them an e-mail about 9:15, we sent them a
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          2  second e-mail about 1:00 a.m. the next morning. So,

          3  any suggestion from the prior testimony, if they had

          4  only known about these families at the church, they

          5  would have been able to do something. Mr. Allen has

          6  been at that church since the night of the 12th

          7  until last night when he was finally given shelter

          8  for the night and we don't know what is going to

          9  happen with the family tonight.

         10                 But listen to the facts. This is a

         11  situation in which they claim that the Allen family

         12  could go back and live at the mother's, a mother's

         13  Housing Authority apartment. The mother suffers from

         14  multiple medical conditions - diabetes, high blood

         15  pressure, cancer, Parkinson's Disease, she is

         16  wheelchair bound. A letter from her treating

         17  physician was submitted to PATH saying it would be

         18  detrimental to her health if this family resided

         19  with her. When he was turned away, when the family

         20  was turned away on the night of the 12th, they ended

         21  up being in contact with one of the not-for-profit

         22  outreach teams that the City contracts with to pick

         23  people off the street and take them into shelter,

         24  the Citizens' Advice Bureau Team. That team took

         25  them back to the mother's apartment that weekend to
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          2  see if they could get them in. They took them back

          3  to PATH when the mother was shaking and wouldn't

          4  allow them into her apartment. Remember, the doctor

          5  says it's detrimental to her health to stay in the

          6  Housing Authority apartment. They bring her back to

          7  PATH, not The Legal Aid Society and not the

          8  Coalition for the Homeless, but a City contracted

          9  outreach team saying we tried to get the family in -

         10  they still turned them away. They still turned them

         11  away. And they remained at the church, as I said,

         12  until last night.

         13                 How about the JA Family? Mr. J and

         14  his son were turned away on the ground that they had

         15  two available housing options, they could sleep in a

         16  dangerous basement apartment, which is a fire trap.

         17  It's not even a lawful living space. I'll give you

         18  the address. Subject to confidentiality, you can

         19  look it up on the website, you'll see that it's not

         20  a legal apartment. It's an apartment that's got

         21  mold, it's got sewage leakage, it's got exposed

         22  wiring. The City said that was one of the places

         23  they could stay in a basement, in an unlawful

         24  apartment.

         25                 They also said in the middle of the
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          2  night on October 12th that they could go back to

          3  Puerto Rico and live with Mr. J's mother. Now, Mr.

          4  J's mother was in serious physical conditions. She

          5  was having surgery for rheumatoid arthritis, she is

          6  in a wheelchair, she sent Mr. JA's son to live with

          7  him because she could no longer care for him in

          8  Puerto Rico. She sent the child from Puerto Rico to

          9  live with him in New York City where he had been.

         10  The night of the 12th, go live in this fire trap,

         11  unlawful apartment. Go back to Puerto Rico somehow

         12  or other to live someplace with someone who can't

         13  care for your child, who had sent the child to live

         14  with you.

         15                 It was only when The Legal Aid

         16  Society ultimately intervened last week, again, this

         17  was a family that we had called to the attention of

         18  the City, we presented photographs of the apartment,

         19  showing the exposed wiring, showing the mold,

         20  showing the leaking sewage that after a number of

         21  days of sleeping on the floor of the church, they

         22  finally gave shelter to this family.

         23                 Again, this family is one that was

         24  called to the attention of the senior lawyers on

         25  Saturday night. I wonder about the process.
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          2                 How about the AP Family? Now, Mrs. AP

          3  and her toddler were told that they could return to

          4  her father's home. This will be a familiar story to

          5  this Committee. Mrs. AP is 21. She was placed in

          6  foster care when she was 12 at the home of her

          7  father, and a previous girlfriend. The father had

          8  beaten her when she was a child. Once so hard she

          9  couldn't even sit down. She ended up in foster care.

         10  When she aged out of foster care, she was brought to

         11  the shelter system. She tried to reconcile with her

         12  father. It didn't work out. She's employed part-time

         13  as a security guard. She got a Section 8 voucher

         14  through ACS. The Department wasn't inspected in

         15  time. She ended up having to come back to the

         16  shelter system to get help again. What did the

         17  shelter system do? The shelter system said that the

         18  family would not be permitted to get shelter and she

         19  had to go back and live with the father.

         20                 That was earlier on the night of the

         21  13th, October 13th. Close to midnight the family had

         22  those changed circumstances, and the City decided to

         23  provide the family with shelter for that night. What

         24  were the changed circumstances? The family secured

         25  legal representation from The Legal Aid Society and
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          2  Bila Linder (phonetic), who is a paralegal at the

          3  Legal Aid took the family back to PATH just short of

          4  midnight on that Saturday night and the City

          5  reversed the decision. So much for changed

          6  circumstances.

          7                 Last but not least, EF Family. Now,

          8  the EF Family also spent the night living in a

          9  church. This is one of the pictures that was

         10  presented earlier in this hearing. The EF Family was

         11  a family that was called to the attention of the

         12  Senior City lawyers on the night of October 13th.

         13                 Mrs. EF and her one-year-old daughter

         14  spent the night of the 12th sleeping in the church.

         15  They spent the night of the 13th sleeping in the

         16  church. Mrs. EF was being told she could go back and

         17  live with her ex-boyfriend's step parents. Her

         18  ex-boyfriend's step parents, in an overcrowded

         19  apartment. There is also a history of domestic

         20  violence in this case. But forget about the domestic

         21  violence, she is being told to go back and live with

         22  her ex-boyfriend's step parents. Then bring in the

         23  domestic violence. Two nights on the floor of the

         24  church, even after being put on notice to the senior

         25  lawyers of the City, on the night of the 14th the
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          2  family slept in a drop-in center for single adults.

          3  Mrs. EF and her one-year-old daughter slept in a

          4  drop-in center at the living from in the Bronx for

          5  single adults. The family was again sheltered in the

          6  church on the night of, for two nights living room,

          7  and then on the 15th again miraculously the changed

          8  circumstances resulted in this family getting

          9  shelter, even after two nights passing since we

         10  contacted the City. What were the changed

         11  circumstances?  Again, a paralegal from The Legal

         12  Aid Society accompanied the family back to PATH.

         13                 I think this is a very pretty picture

         14  of the City policy. It's been defended here. It's

         15  been defended in the media, it's been described as a

         16  great success. But why don't we listen to Mr. Allen

         17  and he in more graphic terms than we could present

         18  could tell you just what the suffering is like to go

         19  through what he has gone through.

         20                 MR. ALLEN: Good afternoon. My name is

         21  Don Allen, Sr. My two sons and I are homeless for

         22  almost two weeks now since DHS denied us shelter. We

         23  slept on the basement floor of St. Ann's Church in

         24  the Bronx. They gave us an overnight placement last

         25  night, but I have no idea where we're going to be
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          2  tonight. I have two rods in my back. Two metal rods.

          3  I walk with my cane, and I'm sleeping on the floors.

          4  It's difficult.

          5                 My older son, who is 20 years old, he

          6  has special needs, and it's been difficult for him.

          7  My youngest son is 11, he has had a very, very, very

          8  bad year. You know, and it's been a little traumatic

          9  for him.

         10                 The last place we stayed was at my

         11  mother's apartment. My father lived there -- excuse

         12  me. My father passed recently, and as he said, my

         13  mother suffers from a lot of medical conditions -

         14  the asthma, the diabetes, the high blood pressure,

         15  Parkinson's and she's in a wheelchair. I lived there

         16  with my son for about a year. I had a car accident,

         17  so I was confined there. I was in bed for a few

         18  months. My mother's health got steadily worse,

         19  because, you know, having us in the home. When my

         20  younger child, I got custody of him, in about

         21  September, and we couldn't stay there after that

         22  really.

         23                 A few days after I got him, we

         24  applied for emergency shelter at PATH. DHS visited

         25  my mother's home. She told him we couldn't stay with
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          2  him. Even so, we were found ineligible because they

          3  said we could go back to her house.

          4                 I gave DHS a letter from my mother's

          5  doctor, which said that it was recommended that she

          6  not accept nor care for any of her relatives,

          7  including me, nor should she care for anyone in her

          8  home. The doctor said it would be unduly a burden on

          9  her and doubtless detrimental to her health. The

         10  letter said that, they still found ineligible.

         11                 We reapplied, we got an overnight

         12  placement, some place to stay at night for about a

         13  month. Every day we would wait at PATH or we would

         14  wait outside for a place to stay. Some nights we

         15  didn't get placed until about 12:30 in the evening.

         16  But every morning they still woke you up at 6:00 and

         17  put you on a bus, go back to PATH.

         18                 It is a difficult way to live. We

         19  always had to keep everything, all our belongings

         20  with us at all times, we didn't know where we were

         21  going to sleep from night to night, wherever they

         22  put us. One of the places, well, a few of the

         23  places, they're nowhere to sleep. They're really

         24  unlivable. You've got holes in the walls, you got

         25  bed bugs, you got dirty mattress, you have
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          2  everything. It makes no sense for them to even send

          3  you there, okay?

          4                 Friday, October 12th, DHS told us

          5  that we couldn't get any overnights no more, no

          6  placements, we had to go. We had nowhere to go. It's

          7  cold. Me and my sons were going to go and sleep in

          8  the park down the street til the next morning.

          9                 Ms. Martha met us at DHS and she took

         10  us to stay in her church on the floor. We stayed

         11  there with a couple of families. The pregnant lady

         12  that he was talking about with a little girl, and

         13  there was another lady there with a little boy, he

         14  had similar issues. He had disabilities. He was a

         15  little boy, about four. The next day, one of the

         16  days the shelter outreach team, after we stayed at

         17  her church that day, they took us back to my

         18  mother's apartment. My mother, from her Parkinson's

         19  she started having her little shaking attack, and

         20  she told them we couldn't stay there at all, under

         21  no circumstances would she allow us back in there.

         22                 The Citizen Advice Bureau took us

         23  back to PATH. PATH workers told us we couldn't even

         24  come in their building. We're very grateful to Ms.

         25  Martha. I love you.
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          2                 REVEREND OVERALL: Thank you.

          3                 MR. ALLEN: She took us back to PATH,

          4  and again they wouldn't let us in the building. We

          5  stood out in the little front area for awhile, and

          6  we waited. The people met in the back and a worker

          7  came back out and told us we couldn't reapply and we

          8  should go back to Pennsylvania where we came from.

          9  That's what the worker said to me. They went around

         10  Ms. Martha, they was trying to ask some questions.

         11  They told me I should go back to Pennyslvania.

         12                 We lived in Pennsylvania for a short

         13  time when we left to come to visit my mother. My

         14  mother was having a cancer operation. My brother

         15  lives in Pennsylvania, and he shares also a Housing

         16  Authority apartment with his little daughter, and

         17  this is where DHS says I should go, even though I

         18  have never been there. If me and my sons did have

         19  some place to go, we would go there. I mean, it is

         20  that simple. The Homeless, DHS told us go out in the

         21  cold, just go somewhere, we can't come back in their

         22  building.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Allen. Before we hear from the Reverend, I

         25  just want to say your story is I think absolutely
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          2  shocking to all of us, and I just wanted you to know

          3  we appreciate very, very much you being here because

          4  what you're doing is also helping others.

          5                 MR. ALLEN: I hope so, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I believe you

          7  will. I believe you will. And helping the public to

          8  understand what's wrong with what's happening there

          9  at PATH. And, you know, I appreciate what you're

         10  doing to help your son, and I wanted you to know and

         11  the Reverend and Mr. Banks that anything we can do

         12  to help, we will.

         13                 MR. ALLEN: Thank you, sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         15                 Reverend.

         16                 REVEREND OVERALL: Just so you know,

         17  that to tell Mr. Allen to go back to Pennsylvania

         18  was even more of an insult, because both of these

         19  young men, both of his sons, were born in New York.

         20  Keith E, that wonderful little 11-year-old is

         21  registered in a New York school in the Bronx, and

         22  God knows how, but by some miracle, this young man

         23  gets 4s still, in spite of what he's going through.

         24                 I'm the Priest at St. Ann's Episcopal

         25  Church in the Mott Haven section of the South Bronx.
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          2  The main focus of our ministry is children, and I'm

          3  deeply concerned about the effect on children of

          4  this City's recent reckless attempt to clear out the

          5  PATH center by any means necessary. This is not the

          6  New York City that I know and love. To give you my

          7  perspective, at Christmas, we try to take the 100

          8  children in our after school program to see the tree

          9  at Rockefeller Center. One year I was holding a

         10  little boy's hand as we climbed the staircase of the

         11  number 6 train."Where are we?" He asked."This is not

         12  New York City." "Yes, it is, Derek," I replied.

         13  "This is not my New York City," he said to me.

         14                 Well, this is not my New York City.

         15  Families with young children are being deprived of

         16  even the most rudimentary, unsavory, short-term

         17  shelter in a bullying attempt to think out the crowd

         18  at the PATH center. People with young children are

         19  being turned away from the shelter on cold nights,

         20  at a brazen attempt at intimidation. This is not my

         21  New York City.

         22                 My involvement in this began on

         23  Friday afternoon of October 12th. Someone from the

         24  Interfaith Assembly on Housing and Homelessness came

         25  to the church and said that they would be protesting
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          2  the City's new policy at 4:00 at PATH. She also said

          3  that shelter was needed for the families who would

          4  be turned away by DHS. Frankly, I indicated that I

          5  don't like it when Mayor's try to get churches to do

          6  the City's job, which in this case is to provide

          7  emergency shelter.

          8                 However, when I went to PATH, the

          9  Legal Aid lawyers said that they needed a place to

         10  meet with their clients. I said that they were

         11  welcome to meet at the church and gave them

         12  directions and agreed to let the families stay at

         13  the church also.

         14                 It was a raw, cold night. So, I got

         15  some hot chocolate for the families and I went back

         16  to the church. Some of our volunteers who had just

         17  finished feeding the children in our after school

         18  program a hot supper, began cooking again. They made

         19  a nice hot stew and some rice. The families started

         20  coming in. They were cold and disheartened. Some of

         21  them had not eaten in a long time. You are not

         22  allowed to take any food into PATH. You can buy junk

         23  food from their over-priced machine, but you can't

         24  take in anything that might be good for your

         25  children.
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          2                 Many of the children were crying.

          3  Some of the adults burst into tears at the simple

          4  kind gesture of getting something hot to drink and

          5  being told that they could stay the night.

          6                 There was a flux of families that

          7  night. Some families came and some families went.

          8  One woman who was eight and a half months pregnant

          9  said that she was going to spend the night on the

         10  floor at an airport. Another pregnant lady and her

         11  toddler spent the night on the floor. One woman was

         12  very, very sick. She kept throwing up. We persuaded

         13  her to go to Lincoln Hospital where she was

         14  diagnosed with severe dehydration and an thyroid

         15  infection. She, too, had a toddler.

         16                 A man with a young child, and that's

         17  Mr. Allen, had recently had back surgery. These are

         18  all families that DHS decided had some place else to

         19  go. The families who came to St. Ann's that cold,

         20  raw night were all in extreme circumstances. Almost

         21  all of them had very young children. Now, I ask you,

         22  if they had some place else to go, why on earth

         23  would they subject themselves to the kind of

         24  treatment that they went through.

         25                 Some of the families came and went.
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          2  Some went back to PATH and got in when they went

          3  back. After about a half dozen families left, then

          4  there remained eight families sleeping on our floor

          5  that Friday night.

          6                 Now, I know that DHS says that there

          7  was a total for only eight families turned away from

          8  PATH during the entire first week of this new

          9  offensive. However, I know that this is not true.

         10  There were eight families there that night alone,

         11  and there were other families out on the street who

         12  we did not get. I saw no evidence that DHS counts

         13  the families that they turn away from PATH.

         14                 The families who were sleeping on the

         15  floor of our church had been denied the right to

         16  emergency shelters, because DHS said they had

         17  another place to go. First of all, nobody in their

         18  right mind would subject their children to the

         19  emergency shelter system if they had a choice.

         20  Secondly, some examples of what DHS considers having

         21  another place to go are, a place where the mother

         22  has been subjected to domestic violence, a place

         23  that ACS has found unacceptable to the children, a

         24  place without a certificate of occupancy, where

         25  there were exposed wires and leaking sewage, et
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          2  cetera, et cetera, et cetera.

          3                 By determinations by DHS that these

          4  families have another place to go are not

          5  reasonable, but the families have no representation

          6  in the process and no meaningful appeal. Quite

          7  frankly, I think that the determination that a

          8  family has some place else to go should be made by

          9  some neutral party.

         10                 DHS is represented by lawyers and all

         11  the determinations are made by DHS employees. But

         12  with regard to a right as important as shelter for

         13  their children, these stressed out homeless families

         14  have no representation. DHS calls all the shots and

         15  DHS is arbitrary.

         16                 To show you just how arbitrary they

         17  are, during a meeting last Friday with the

         18  Interfaith Assembly, Deputy Mayor Gibbs told me to

         19  take any family I felt had been inappropriately

         20  denied shelter back to PATH, even if it was after

         21  5:00 p.m. So, I took two of the families back that

         22  night. Each family had been turned down for

         23  emergency shelter on the ground that they had a

         24  viable alternative for housing. I had the papers to

         25  prove that their alternatives were not viable in an
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          2  envelope, but PATH was not even interested in seeing

          3  them.

          4                 When we got in, the person behind the

          5  desk said that her computer had frozen, and she

          6  disappeared into the back. That was odd, because the

          7  computer seemed to work fine for everyone else.

          8  After an hour they called the name of one of the

          9  families, and told them that they would get shelter.

         10  They sent the other family, which was the Allens,

         11  away. Both families were in the same position as far

         12  as DHS was concerned, however, only one family got

         13  shelter that night. In other words, whether any

         14  given family gets shelter on any given night is

         15  arbitrary.

         16                 DHS and Deputy Mayor Gibbs admit that

         17  they make mistakes. At the meeting last Friday, they

         18  admitted that at least five percent of their refusal

         19  to give shelter are in error. That's what they admit

         20  to. And even that's a lot of families. That's a lot

         21  of children.

         22                 The process for determining whether a

         23  family has a viable alternative place to live needs

         24  to be more fair and reasonable, and for those

         25  families where mistakes have been made, and they do
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          2  not have a viable alternative place to live, and

          3  they have no choice but to resort to the emergency

          4  shelter system, that must not be denied to them.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          7  Reverend.

          8                 Well, it's absolutely shocking. And

          9  to begin with, Mr. Banks, you had no trouble finding

         10  out exactly what happened to each of these families.

         11  And, yet, the Commissioner DHS says DHS has no idea

         12  what happened to the 11 families it turned away. So,

         13  right there it's deeply troubling that DHS did not

         14  go to the effort in implementing a new policy that

         15  can only be called radical, a radical departure from

         16  the past, that they didn't go the effort to find out

         17  what it meant for the people negatively affected.

         18                 And I think the Reverend's point is

         19  very well taken. You know, is this the City deciding

         20  it's time to go back to the days when only churches

         21  and synagogues provided shelter? You know, it's

         22  deeply, deeply troubling. These individual families

         23  that you talk about today, it's not even close,

         24  these are all obviously families in profound need,

         25  and I don't understand under any policy how these
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          2  folks could be turned away.

          3                 So, you know, we call these hearings

          4  hoping things are not as bad as they seem, but in

          5  this case at least it appears to be at least as bad

          6  as it seems.

          7                 Council Member Lappin. Oh, Council

          8  Member Foster. I'm sorry, Council Member Foster.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         10                 I'm assuming, and I might be assuming

         11  wrong that there are still people here from DHS. So,

         12  now that we know Mr. Allen's name, I'm hoping that

         13  someone is actually out looking at his case, working

         14  on a phone to find him permanent residency and not

         15  just listening to the story, because this is what I

         16  was getting at. If a no is a no, you don't put

         17  people out on the street.

         18                 And to Reverend Martha, I'm sorry I

         19  don't remember your last name, God bless you. Thank

         20  you for what you do. But I think other, more than

         21  just saying to you, Mr. Allen, that we appreciate

         22  you coming forward because it has to be difficult. I

         23  do hope that someone from DHS is actually looking

         24  and saying we've made a mistake and what can we do,

         25  because I don't need you to sit here and hear the
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          2  stories that you already know are occurring. And the

          3  names that you are not able to disclose, because

          4  they're not here, we can't work on those, but Mr.

          5  Allen, before he leaves, should know something is

          6  being done and can reapply because it's clear that

          7  it's not working, and one mistake is three mistakes

          8  too many, because we have three people living in a

          9  church basement that is no place for someone to

         10  live. And I would challenge anyone from DHS that

         11  says that's appropriate housing, then you go sleep

         12  on the church floor and give up your bed.

         13                 So, I really do hope, Mr. Chair, that

         14  as they're sitting here, one, someone is up making

         15  the necessary phone calls to find somewhere

         16  appropriate for Mr. Allen to reside for tonight and

         17  then getting him permanent housing.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I agree. And I

         20  thank you, Council member. And we are going to

         21  follow-up later on with DHS.

         22                 Council Member Brewer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: A very quick

         24  question.

         25                 For the Reverend and for Steve Banks.
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          2  What is the -- any kind of outreach as to what you

          3  suggest, the Special Master's suggestion about

          4  working with neighborhoods and community-based

          5  organizations and Legal Aid to try to solve these

          6  problems, as opposed to this somewhat adversary

          7  position?

          8                 In other words, we all have the same

          9  goal here, or does it end up being adversarial?

         10                 MR. BANKS: I'm not sure that it is

         11  adversarial when you see great human suffering and

         12  send an e-mail to senior members of the various Law

         13  Departments involved asking that action be taken,

         14  and nobody even responds to you.

         15                 I think that says a lot. And then

         16  from e-mails that were sent on a Saturday night to a

         17  Tuesday with the City saying actually we never make

         18  mistakes in these cases, and then actually out of

         19  all the cases, all of them that eventually conceded

         20  that they need shelter, except in this particular

         21  case, and I appreciate Council Member Foster's

         22  forceful views expressed, this case should be dealt

         23  with now too.

         24                 I should say that the other synonyms

         25  that we used are the EF and so forth, the City knows
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          2  exactly who those families are, and that for a

          3  number of days has been saying that they did nothing

          4  wrong in their various cases.

          5                 So, you know, you hear a lot about

          6  lawyers in litigation, but if these things can be

          7  worked out in litigation, fine, but I think what

          8  we're seeing here, and we're presenting to the

          9  Committee evidence, is that despite the fact that

         10  the City has spent a lot of time, I know they've

         11  testified before this Committee that the

         12  Commissioners should run the agencies and the courts

         13  shouldn't get involved, I think you see why it is

         14  that things end up in court, and I suppose it's

         15  ironic that at the same time this policy is

         16  unfolding, this great suffering is unfolding, the

         17  City is in court attempting to vacate 20 years worth

         18  of court orders to say exactly what happened to the

         19  Allen family shouldn't happen. They're just a little

         20  ahead of themselves before they succeeded in getting

         21  rid of the court orders.

         22                 But I think it's a sad commentary on

         23  the City that we're in a place where on the one hand

         24  they're seeking to strip away legal protections that

         25  require the provision of shelter, and at the same
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          2  time, actually denying shelter to their vulnerable

          3  children and families as we've seen. And with the

          4  numbers that are on their own website, in their own

          5  data, be speaking the dimensions of the problem,

          6  they've continued to come forward and say it's a

          7  very small problem, when it's involving hundreds and

          8  hundreds of families and hundreds and hundreds of

          9  kids.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Anybody ever

         11  reach out to you and say what can we do or nothing?

         12                 REVEREND OVERALL: No. But the crux of

         13  the problem is the viable housing alternative

         14  determination, and that's not being made fairly. And

         15  you know in Mr. Allen's case, the street outreach

         16  team from CAB, which is under contract to the City,

         17  actually said he does not have a viable housing

         18  alternative, and DHS refused to accept it. If the

         19  Council would say, well, if you make a determination

         20  of a viable housing alternative, let me or my staff

         21  go and check that or some neutral third party go and

         22  check that and determine that that's really true.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I would

         24  appreciate that.

         25                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes. I just

          3  want to turn to Council Member Lappin, but I just

          4  have to caution that it's getting very close to 5:00

          5  and we're going to have to end the hearing quite

          6  soon. We have two more panels that are waiting to

          7  speak.

          8                 So, Council Member Lappin.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: All I will say

         10  is this, Mr. Chairman, and I appreciate your

         11  granting me this opportunity. There were a lot of --

         12  we heard DHS today defend this policy and nobody

         13  here has said I'm sorry. So, I'm here to say I'm

         14  sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That was worth

         16  yielding to.  And we thank you for that. And,

         17  finally, Mr. Allen, just I hope your sons are

         18  getting a very positive lesson in the midst of all

         19  of this difficulty, that you're standing up and

         20  speaking out and trying to take full advantage of

         21  your rights in the democratic process to say that

         22  something the government is doing isn't right, and I

         23  admire you for doing that and I'm glad your sons got

         24  to witness that. Thank you very much, this panel.

         25                 Our next panel is Camella
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          2  Pinkney-Price of Senator Ruben Diaz, Jr's office,

          3  and Jeannine Johnson of Assemblymember Wright's

          4  Office.

          5                 We welcome you and we appreciate you

          6  being here. Who would like to begin?

          7                 MS. JOHNSON: I'll begin. Good

          8  afternoon. My name is Jeanine Johnson. And I serve

          9  as General Counsel to Assemblyman Keith Wright, who

         10  Chairs the State Assembly Standing Committee on

         11  Social Services, and I'm going to read his testimony

         12  for you all today that was prepared prior to, but I

         13  can't do that without expressing my own opinion just

         14  briefly, that I wish that the Commissioner had been

         15  able to stay to listen to the testimony of the

         16  gentleman that was here prior to me, because it's

         17  really, really truly indicative of the flaws in the

         18  policy that he has decided to put forward and it is

         19  an injustice that this had to happen.

         20                 But, again, thank you, to Chairman

         21  DeBlasio and the members of the Committee on General

         22  Welfare, for allowing me to present the testimony of

         23  Assemblyman Keith Wright on the Department of

         24  Homeless Services' recently implemented policy on

         25  family intake and overnight placements on New York
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          2  City homeless shelters.

          3                 This new policy, which purposefully

          4  excludes families from seeking nightly emergency

          5  shelter after they have been ruled ineligible for

          6  shelter, due to the City's belief that they may have

          7  an alternative place to stay is a potentially lethal

          8  policy which puts at-risk women and children out in

          9  the street with no regard for their care or

         10  well-being.

         11                 While the City Department of Homeless

         12  Services alleges that this implementation of policy

         13  is a necessary response to the abuse of the homeless

         14  care system by a few dozen families, the effects are

         15  much more far-reaching than stated.

         16                 This policy will potentially exclude

         17  thousands of individuals from receiving emergency

         18  shelter simply because they were denied initially.

         19                 This near-sighted solution to a

         20  complex issue will exacerbate the already critical

         21  problem of homeless New Yorkers and will create

         22  situations of abject homelessness.

         23                 This is a bad policy and it endangers

         24  the lives and the welfare of the City's most

         25  vulnerable residents.
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          2                 The Assemblyman's reasoning for this

          3  belief stems from the subjective, not objective, but

          4  subjective issues involved in determining whether a

          5  family does indeed have an alternative place to

          6  stay.

          7                 How can a Department charged with

          8  reducing the number of homelessness in the City by

          9  two-thirds, according to Mayor Bloomberg's pledge,

         10  effectively investigate and take into consideration

         11  the situations of 9,500 currently homeless families

         12  in New York City.

         13                 The answer is complicated and cannot

         14  be identified, especially when the mandate is to

         15  deny the majority and punish the relatively few who

         16  allegedly exploit the system.

         17                 With this policy the City is on a

         18  reckless path to solving a difficult problem and in

         19  the meanwhile innocent families are being forced

         20  into the street as winter approaches.

         21                 If a family does manage to remove

         22  themselves from the shelters and get a relative or a

         23  friend to house them, even temporarily, this

         24  excludes the family from seeking shelter in a DHS

         25  site.
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          2                 According to DHS, the only way the

          3  family could be remitted to the shelter system is if

          4  there is a change in circumstance, such as an

          5  instance in domestic violence, child abuse, or the

          6  person who they are staying with is evicted. What if

          7  the family's host just simply wants them to move

          8  out? What if the host is in violation of their lease

          9  by housing this family? What if the Department of

         10  Homeless Services made a mistake in processing of

         11  this family?

         12                 Are the homeless women and children

         13  serious expected to hit the streets with no

         14  possibility of care from the agency charged with

         15  their well-being?

         16                 I ask myself these questions and

         17  prayed this was not the case, but in conversations

         18  with families which have been affected by this

         19  policy, and as the examples show that we have had

         20  today, it is, and sadly is the case, and they have

         21  nowhere to turn.

         22                 This is a classic case of a City

         23  agency being penny-wise and pound foolish.

         24  Sacrificing the needs of many due to the actions of

         25  a few.
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          2                 Our City's most vulnerable families

          3  are not pawns in a chess game and the last thing

          4  they need is a lot of bureaucratic red tape intended

          5  to keep them out of the warmth and safety of our

          6  shelter system. When a notoriously uncaring former

          7  Governor, George Pataki, endorsed the policy that

          8  enabled the State Office of Temporary and Disability

          9  Assistance to administer a directive in 2005

         10  allowing municipal homeless service agencies to

         11  exclude homeless families at their discretion

         12  because they have denied shelter once before, know

         13  one thought, that any Mayor of the great City of New

         14  York would follow suit. Unfortunately, our Mayor

         15  did, and it is up to us to work with the new

         16  Commissioner of OTDA in collaboration with Governor

         17  Spitzer and the Senate to rescind this directive and

         18  enact legislation that will permanently address the

         19  issue.

         20                 To Mayor Bloomberg I say if the way

         21  in which you reduce New York City's homeless

         22  population is to drive them out of the City with

         23  negligent policy, you have succeeded, but your

         24  homeless initiative is already a failure.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          3  much. I appreciate very much the strength of your

          4  views and the Assemblyman's.

          5                 Ms. Pinkney-Price, we welcome your

          6  testimony.

          7                 MS. PINKNEY-PRICE: I, too, sitting

          8  here, and I'm very upset from things I have heard,

          9  but I want to thank you, Chairman DeBlasio, for

         10  commencing this hearing on a very important issue,

         11  that is not only important to my State Senator, but

         12  to me as a human being to all of us in this room,

         13  regarding the families and what's happening to them.

         14                 I'm going to read the Senator's

         15  statement, then I will tell you what I observed when

         16  I was there for several nights.

         17                 This is a statement by New York State

         18  Senator Ruben Diaz, who sits on the Committee for

         19  Social Service and Children and Families, and the

         20  topic is for the Department of Homeless Services new

         21  policy for family intake and overnight placement.

         22                 On Friday, October 12th, 2007, I held

         23  a press conference outside of PATH Emergency Family

         24  Shelter, located at 346 Powers Avenue in the Bronx.

         25  We were there to bear witness to Mayor Michael
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          2  Bloomberg's new policy for the City's homeless

          3  services.

          4                 My Chief of Staff, Ms. Camella

          5  Pinkney-Price, joined us at the PATH shelter on

          6  Friday, October 12th, 2007 and returned several

          7  nights after to personally witness the treatment of

          8  Bronx families who attempted to seek emergency

          9  shelter.

         10                 The families who were denied due to

         11  the Mayor's new plans for the homelessness, to

         12  supposedly close a loophole in the City of New

         13  York's homeless policy included mothers and fathers

         14  with children and expectant mothers.

         15                 This new policy went into effect on

         16  the first cool night of autumn. It was a disgrace.

         17  Several families on the list of names to be denied

         18  included families who were placed on the list in

         19  error.

         20                 As a result, the City of New York

         21  inflicted emotional harm and undue suffering on

         22  mothers, fathers and children that sought and then

         23  were denied emergency shelter.

         24                 During that first week of the new

         25  policy, New York City had 9,400 families, that is
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          2  36,042 people living in the City's shelter. I

          3  reiterate the words of Mary Brosnahan, Executive

          4  Director of Coalition for the Homeless: "Instead of

          5  helping place these families into permanent housing,

          6  the Bloomberg Administration has announced a new

          7  initiative that will force many homeless families to

          8  return to the unsafe living situations or out onto

          9  the streets.

         10                 Mayor Michael Bloomberg is failing at

         11  his goal to reduce homelessness. His policies are

         12  failing too many New Yorkers in need. This new

         13  policy by Mayor Bloomberg has already affected

         14  mothers, families and children who have no place to

         15  turn and will be forced spending the nights riding

         16  the subway, living in parks, streets, and sleeping

         17  on public benches.

         18                 The winter and very cold weather has

         19  not yet arrived. Our office received hundreds of

         20  complaints from Bronx residents about the treatment

         21  of families in need in New York's homeless shelter.

         22  These complaints include stories of personal insults

         23  and badgering from City staff, degrading mothers and

         24  fathers in front of their children about how

         25  unacceptable it is to be homeless. It is not the
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          2  place of municipal staff to pass judgment upon or

          3  mock families and degrade New Yorkers who need

          4  emergency assistance. These complaints include

          5  stories from mothers who were denied the ability to

          6  heat their children's milk, or provide warm food for

          7  their children, all while watching City employees

          8  order warm food and drink in their presence. These

          9  complaints are from families who are given the same

         10  meal every day at the Bronx Emergency Shelter.

         11  Children receive cold food. The same thing for each

         12  meal - milk, an apple, a juice and a sandwich.

         13                 These complaints include the denial

         14  of families to bring warm food into the shelter to

         15  feed their families. The same mop that is used to

         16  mop the floor should never be used to mop the

         17  toilet.

         18                 These complaints include families who

         19  describe the bathrooms at the Bronx Emergency

         20  Homeless Shelter as filthy. Is it too much to ask

         21  someone to mop the floor with a different mop than

         22  they use to clean the toilets?

         23                 Ms. Pinkney-Price witnessed staff at

         24  the PATH Emergency Shelter change the time that a

         25  mother of three young children signed out at 10:28
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          2  p.m. The staff person changed the time to 9:28 p.m.

          3  The mother had signed in before 5:00 p.m. that day.

          4  The only conclusion we can reach is that this was

          5  done to prevent the woman from being granted her

          6  overnight shelter.

          7                 These complaints are about too many

          8  City employees who are so entrenched in the system

          9  and work in homeless shelters that the lack of

         10  professionalism and common courtesy toward New York

         11  families in need include families who seek

         12  preventive services.

         13                 We will and should not stand for any

         14  policy that denies shelter to any family or person

         15  seeking assistance. A drastic change at this shelter

         16  is needed, and a complete overview of the emergency

         17  shelter system is required.

         18                 According to Mary Brosnahan, three

         19  years after Mayor Bloomberg promised to end

         20  homelessness in New York City by 2009, the number of

         21  families seeking shelter is up 11 percent over last

         22  year.

         23                 The number of families in the shelter

         24  has a new record high, and tragically the number of

         25  children seeking shelter is soaring. In fact, this
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          2  week there were more than 9,400 families in New York

          3  City shelter each night. The highest number in New

          4  York City's history. And I also need to repeat

          5  myself - I see this as another example of a

          6  billionaire who is so out of touch and not concerned

          7  with the pain and suffering of our communities.

          8                 In light of the glimpse of

          9  mistreatment and suffering we have already witnessed

         10  in the brief time this poorly thought-out policy has

         11  taken effect, I respectfully urge the City Council

         12  of New York to oppose the Mayor's new policy for

         13  homelessness and instead support families in need.

         14                 While I was at that shelter, I was

         15  there from that Friday to that Wednesday with the

         16  Legal Aid team and with Coalition for the Homeless,

         17  and I thank God we was there and I will be returning

         18  there tonight after I leave here.

         19                 I had one family that I helped them

         20  get placed. It was a young lady with three kids.

         21  They threw her out. That's the lady I spoke about

         22  when I read the testimony. She had signed out after

         23  10:00. They told her, they went in there and changed

         24  it to 9:28 and told her she was not eligible for

         25  placement. ACS, I spoke to her ACS worker, ACS told
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          2  her if she returned to where she left they would

          3  take her kids. Now, hearing the Commissioner sit

          4  here and state that ACS is right there in the

          5  building, during normal business hours 9:00 to 5:00,

          6  they could have taken her case to the ACS worker and

          7  just confirmed what her worker had stated in the

          8  letter. No, they had denied her and told her to go

          9  back to where she came from.

         10                 Even though there was a letter

         11  stating if she goes back they would take her kids. I

         12  then in turn made some phone calls and working with

         13  Legal Aid, she didn't go to the church. I placed her

         14  somewhere for the night. The next day we went back.

         15  I forced them to call ACS. They refused. So I then

         16  had her worker call the shelter and put in a letter

         17  in fact saying she cannot go back. Then she was

         18  placed. This was a woman that had a two-month-old

         19  baby that never received a shot and was out in the

         20  cold with no coat, no nothing.

         21                 My daughter and myself went back to

         22  my house, for all those other families that was out

         23  there, and got coats we didn't wear, and hoodies and

         24  brought them back to the families and gave it to

         25  them. It's heart-breaking what's going on here. And
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          2  to see staff sit there and laugh and degrade these

          3  people and tell them -- Resource Room? Yes, they

          4  have a Resource Room. Do you really want to know

          5  what the Resource Room tells them? Well, you

          6  shouldn't have got pregnant. We don't have to be

          7  bothered with you. No, they don't pick up a phone

          8  and try to help them. They degrade these people. I

          9  snuck in there, I will tell anybody. They thought I

         10  was homeless. But that's for me to go in there and

         11  help the people. And I went in there and I saw the

         12  man mop the floor and take that same mop and mop the

         13  toilet. I saw the man that's the guard standing

         14  outside the door, and he's looking in the woman's

         15  bathroom. And I'm saying why is there a male right

         16  in front of the bathroom? Why don't you put a female

         17  there? They said they could do whatever they want.

         18  They told me they don't give a you know what who I

         19  was when I told them who I was. And they just sit

         20  there and they mock these people. That's hurting

         21  because these are people who really need help. There

         22  isn't nobody out there conning the system. Yes, we

         23  do have those very few that's trying to get over,

         24  that's like with anything. These are people that

         25  really need help.
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          2                 They told my ACS, they want to call

          3  ACS to take these people's kids. That's all they

          4  tell them - if you don't do this we're going to have

          5  ACS remove your kids. But then educational neglect,

          6  they're contributing to that, because these kids

          7  can't go to school on a regular basis. Why? Because

          8  they've got to sit in PATH, from the time they're

          9  brought back from overnight until the time they can

         10  sit there and be found eligible. And as they move,

         11  then they log out and then they have to start all

         12  over again.

         13                 See, that's what they don't say.

         14  There's a lot of what they didn't say, and I sat

         15  there today and I beared my tongue on a lot. But

         16  there needs to be a total revamping of that place,

         17  and you really need to go in there, maybe you call

         18  can't go in there like I go in there, and make

         19  believe I'm homeless, but you need to go there and

         20  just see what is really going on. And the day that

         21  we all leave, Legal Aid, Coalition for the Homeless,

         22  and myself, that's the day that you're going to see

         23  the truth, because you know what, they're just going

         24  to throw, really throw them out. They're really

         25  going to throw them out. They're just waiting for us
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          2  to leave.

          3                 So, please, and I've known you for a

          4  long time, Mr. Chair, and I love you to death, but

          5  I'm asking you to please follow this up, because

          6  this is not just, I have no family in there, but to

          7  me, I do have a lot of family there, and we have to

          8  be strong for them, because there is nobody else

          9  there for them. And that's my testimony.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, Camella,

         11  I can't thank you enough. I've known you a long time

         12  and it doesn't surprise me that you're up there

         13  advocating the way you are, and it's very, very

         14  powerful and you know, I think we all get frustrated

         15  and I think Council Member Palma had the experience

         16  too of trying to intervene, and even being a public

         17  official as you are, getting treated the way you got

         18  treated, but at the same time, you know, that

         19  intervention clearly makes a big impact. The ability

         20  to witness what happened, the ability to tell the

         21  story from first-hand experience, but also it puts

         22  people on notice, and I know it changes some of

         23  their behavior, just like I hope today's hearing

         24  will change some of the behavior and ultimately

         25  change the policy. So, thank you. Your testimony and
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          2  all of the work you've been doing up there is very

          3  much appreciated.

          4                 MS. PINKNEY-PRICE: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you so

          6  much.

          7                 All right, we have, I just wanted to

          8  say we were going to have a fourth panel, but I want

          9  to thank Patrick Markee of the Coalition for the

         10  Homeless, he's graciously agreed to forego formal

         11  testimony, or I should say verbal testimony. His

         12  written testimony is extensive, will be entered into

         13  the formal record. We do have one individual who

         14  signed up. I'm sorry, also for the record we have

         15  testimony from Anna Lou Dehavanon. I hope I'm saying

         16  that correct. That will be entered into the record

         17  as well.

         18                 We have one person who signed up for

         19  public testimony, if she is still here, Maria

         20  Walles. And Ms. Walles, please come up to the

         21  witness table. Just a reminder to everyone that with

         22  all General Welfare Committee hearings, public

         23  testimony is limited to two minutes. Anyone in the

         24  City can sign up but it is limited to two minutes.

         25  And we welcome your testimony.
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          2                 MS. WALLES: Yes, good evening. My

          3  name is Maria Walles. This is my husband, Alan

          4  Granville, of course, my four-year-old, she's busy.

          5  Her name is Alexis Granville.

          6                 I would like to say thank you for

          7  taking the opportunity to listen to my testimony and

          8  to the people that have tried to do their best to

          9  help me. You know who you are. I would like my

         10  husband to speak on as far as our case is concerned,

         11  dealing with DHS and the headaches that we're going

         12  through right now with them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

         14                 MR. GRANVILLE: Good evening, sir.

         15                 As my wife was talking about, I

         16  forgot this lady's name.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         18  Foster.

         19                 MR. GRANVILLE: As she stated, if the

         20  mother say no, the mother say no. When that is

         21  documented and said, DHS workers do not look at it.

         22  They just throw it in the folder and go back and

         23  resolve the problem.

         24                 Now, police records, we show them the

         25  same thing, if she goes this year, get arrested. DHS
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          2  workers look at it, put it in a folder, go back and

          3  resolve it. My daughter was three when we first

          4  started, nine months ago. We came in the system

          5  February. All these are here is overnights. Seven

          6  months worth of overnights. Overnight money spent

          7  and we don't have a place to stay. If we go back

          8  right now, they would deny it right now. We actually

          9  might be at St. Ann's, St. Mary Church, and we don't

         10  want that. My daughter haven't ate hot food in

         11  awhile. I want to cook for her one day. That's what

         12  we ask for. The people in there is not saying what

         13  they doing. They is not. So, I thank you for this

         14  time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         16                 MR. GRANVILLE: I just want some help.

         17                 MS. WALLES: Basically what he's

         18  trying to say is the last nine months we've been

         19  going through this system. Now, they won't tell you,

         20  all they do is call you. I've been in five, ten-day

         21  placement. All of them were great. I had a nice time

         22  in there. My daughter, she had plenty of rest. We

         23  would have a nice time. We go by their curfews,

         24  everything. We did everything by the book. We had

         25  gotten help. They tried to help us. We were supposed
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          2  to be in a program, but unfortunately we received

          3  those ineligible letters that they always give you

          4  on the tenth day.

          5                 Actually, they won't tell you, like

          6  when you go on an interview, they don't say if

          7  you're eligible or not, and I kept persisting, even

          8  when I first started going through the system, just

          9  tell me right now, just tell me if I'm eligible or

         10  not? Oh, well, we'll wait til the tenth day. Of

         11  course, the knock on the door, the ineligible

         12  letter. Why couldn't you just tell me? Pack up, go,

         13  do the legal conference, do another overnight. I'm

         14  surprised I got three ten-day placements. I was very

         15  surprised.

         16                 Despite all of this, I still kept

         17  doing whatever they told me. They even told me to

         18  get married. I got married.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Ms. Walles, I'm

         20  sorry to interrupt. I need you to summarize because

         21  we do have a time limit.

         22                 MS. WALLES: I will make this quick

         23  and simple. I got a police report. I got a police

         24  report. All I'm trying to say is I want to work at

         25  the bottom and start working myself up to the top.
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          2  All I asked was for their help. Unfortunately I

          3  can't stay at my mother's no more.

          4                 Unfortunately, my mother said no. I

          5  got kicked out. Got kicked out in the cold. She's

          6  like you got to go. And that's all I have to say.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          8  Thank you for being here to testify. We appreciate

          9  it. Good luck with everything.

         10                 MS. WALLES: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, this

         12  hearing of the General Welfare Committee is now

         13  adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 5:25 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of October 2007.
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